A MESsSSAGE

FROM T HE

PRESIDENT

will go on record as a
19 9 8 watershed year for
NIAC. It was a year of subtle, but
important changes...a year of taking
stock in what we have accomplished
and of planning for the futare. It was
also a year of strong growth and

robust financial results.

ﬁ t year-end, NIAC member-
insureds numbered 1,787, an

increase of 288 new members this
vear. Eighty-nine percent of our
members renewed with NIAC. And,
44 percent of NIAC's members, a
total of 783 nonprofits, have been
NIAC members for five or more
years. Net income of $1,400,078 is
the strongest in our history. Gross
written premium of §12,433,347 is

an increase of 7.2 percent over 1997,

hile these results are good,

» \/ why a watershed year? It was
about mid-year when we realized that
the new-kid-on-the-block, upstart,
underdog image just didn't fit NIAC

anymore. We took a look around and

realized that NIAC was becoming

both large, and diverse enough to be
a market leader in our particular
niche, 501(¢)(3) nonprofit t.lt“'..{iltlix'.l-
tions. In fact, NIAC now insures one
out of every ten public charities in
California which are required to
report to the federal government.

And, we are continuing to grow.

Musl importantly, we have accu-
mulated suftficient data about
claims against nonprofit organiza-
tions to take the leadership in devel-
oping a p::]icy to meet the spcci:ﬂ
needs ()l‘lll)n]‘r]‘tlﬁl:\'. In mid-1998,
with the help and guidance of one of
our reinsurers, Swiss Re America, we
set out to do just that. What emerged
is aptly called Nonprofits' OWN.
This name :-‘.if_{n'lﬂ(.‘s both that the
policy was designed just for nonprof-
its, and also that it was designed by a
company owned by nonprofits. The
N(mpml‘lls' OWN form replaces the
claims-made coverages on both our
sexual abuse and directors and offi-
cers coverage forms with a new
"event trigger” form. No more wor-

ries about gaps in coverage from

claims-made policies! And Nonprof-
its' OWN provides many automatic
enhancements on both the general
liability and auto lability policies.
This new form ofters the broadest,
most innovative coverage available for
nonprofits in California. Also, we
recently reduced the minimum pre-
mium on our general liability policies
from §1,000, to $700. We are offer-
ing these enhancements as ten-year
anniversary gifts to both current and

flll’lll'(.' members.

‘ N Tith all this change and
growth, the question remains,
"Are we providing the level of service
that our members and their brokers
deserve?” 1 recently received a won-
derful note from a retiring insurance
broker who speaks cloquently to this.

In part, he said:

“..d consider NIAC the finest organiza-
tion I have dealt with in forty + years
in this business. Everyone is profession-
al, knowledgeable and pleasant to deal
with. You deliver what you promise...”
—Dick Flynn,
Fairco Insurance

Dc]i\-‘rring on a promise is, after
all, what insurance is all about.
[t is our continuing privilege to do

that for the best customers in the

world, nonprofit organizations.

ol 70

Pamela E. Davis
Prestdent/CEO
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FroM THE

In 1999 NIAC celebrates 10 years of
serving California's smnpmf‘lt com
munity. From the many favorable com-
ments received from members, T must
conclude that our pn]ir_\-‘h:.\]‘it:rs share
the pride that the Board of Directors

tukes in the company's accomplishments.

D ] arked by innovation from its
very start, NIAC is respected for
its dedication to covering

the RI‘L‘C-EHI
risks of its members while conducting a
financially sound insurance operation.
NIAC was founded on the principle
that the inrerests of its members come
first, and we are pleased that the 1998
financial statements in this report show
that the company can follow this pre-
cept without compromising its ability

to protect the members.

Ithough 1998 marked my first

year as Chairman, my perspective
on NIAC extends over the seven vears
that I have served as a member of the
Board of Directors. In those seven
vears, | have watched the company's

annual premium more than triple.

CHAIRMAN OF THE

A~ the company concentrated on
expanding its services and
resources, we at times have been con-
founded to find that NIAC was not as
\\'Edd_\' recognized as it deserved to be.
In order to hn:.uim 1ts I'L".i\'it, the com-
pany has hired its first marketing direc
tor to coordinate and improve the many
ways that NIAC makes itself known to
the nonprotit and broker communities.

I more

laimns handling also receive

focus in 1998, As the scale of
NIAC's operations grew, we believed
that a shift from an outside claim
administrator to an in-house unit
staffed with NIAC employees would
result in better and more efficient ser-
vice. We made that change at mid-year
and, while we have always received high
marks for claims handling, recent sur
veys indicate that 95 percent or more of
our members and brokers are satistied
(and often very satisfied) with NIAC's

underwriting and claims operations,

‘ ‘ Je also have begun to assess the
need and the feasibility of
c_\lsamding NIAC's type of }\1‘n.u|uctr- and
services to nonprofit organizations out-
side of California. This process is being
underwritten by a substantial grant
trom the Packard Foundation and is
being guidud l‘} a Task Force compris-
ing members of NIAC's Board and
management as well as outside experts.
While it 1s too early to report results, |
wish to assure our members and brokers
that any expansion will be undertaken
only after caretul due diligence, and
only it we are convinced thar NIAC

and its members will benefit.

t was a vear of hard work, business

hasics and thoughtful planning. We
hope vou will notice the fruirs of those
labors in terms of better communica
tion, more focused claims handling,
FLl]‘t'I'iﬂl‘ |]1t':1]l"'.'_'5- .l'[]d I'\l'l\}\'i.'ll ":l.':'\'.l\'l'i
and expanded coverages in 1999 and

E‘L‘} { rmi.

:[u closing, I would like to thank the
members of the Board for their con-
scientious stewardship and congratulute
the statf and management team for a

vear of excellent results,

R. Lawrence Bacon

Chairman
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NIAC’s

FaAmMmiry CONTINUES

T0o0 GRrROW

Numhcring nearly 1,800 organi-
zations across the state, NIAC
members are located in every major
city and in virtually every county in
California. NIAC now insures nearly
one in ten of the 501(¢)(3) non-
church nonprofits in the state. Our
membership spans as far north as
Yreka, and south to San Ysidro. As
expected, much of our membership is
concentrated in the heavily populated

urban areas of San Francisco, Los

Angeles and San Diego. We also have
strong representation in the Central
Valley and members as far cast as the
shores of Lake Tahoe.

s illustrated by the pie chart

below, 76 percent of NIAC
members are located in coastal com-
munities, while 24 percent of mem-
bers are located in the less densely

populated inland arcas.

TAC is not quite a houschold
name, _\’Cf we Cnntinuc o
establish ourselves as an integral part
of the nonprofit community. A sub-
stantial portion of NIAC's growth
can be attributed to referrals by our

‘members to other nonprofits. These

referrals, coupled with an active pro-
ducer network of over 300 licensed
insurance agents and brokers, are
important components of NIAC's

continued growth.

Central Coast

North Coast

Coachella Valley

San Joaquin Valley

South Coast

Sterra Nevada
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THE

NTAC SToRrRY

At its most basic level, NIAC
collects premiums and pavs
claims. But between the lines we do a
lot more. '\TI\(. Wils \‘I't‘;llt't] as
response to a erisis. Insurers would not
provide insurance to some nonprofits at
any price. NIAC was founded on the
principal that insurance companies
should not determine which social
services could be offered simply by con-
trolling which nonprofits could obrain
insurance. Those types of decisions
should be in the hands of the nonprofit
community. And, that is where they are
with NIAC. With NIAC, nopprofits
have gained control over their insurance
source. They have assumed the respon-
sibility and enjoy the freedom that

comes with that choice.

1998 Premium BY LINE

5.3% PR 6.3%

Auto Physical Damage $1,116,716 Aunto L

9.0%

N IAC's nine years of experience has
demonstrated that nonprofit
organizations have better than average
claims experience. Nevertheless, we

maintain strong financial backing to

COVEr any contingencies,

ix foundations pre wided the
E ;uri_s_{in:ﬂ capital funding for NIAC,
These foundations are:

- FFord Foundation

« David & Lucile Packard

Foundation

- Wallace Alexander Gerbode
Foundation

« San Francisco Foundation
» Marin Community Foundation

- Walter 8. Johnson Foundation

g dding to NIAC' financial
strength is the consistent backing

by strong reinsurers who provide cover-
age for claims in excess of $150,000.
The same three reinsurers, which are
among the world’s largest, have provid-
ed this coverage for NIAC for many
years. They are:
« Munich-American Risk Partners
{Bests rated A+v+)
» General Reinsurance
(Best’s rated A++)
= Swiss Re America
(Bests rated A+)
CovERAGES AVAILABLE FOR MEMBERS
» General Liability
« Misc. Professional Liability

« Improper Sexual Conduct Liability

» Auto Liability

« Auto Physical Damage

» Non-owned/Hired Auto Liability
» Liquor Liability

» Employee Benefits Liability

- Directors and Officers Liability

« Umbrella Liability

Torar §12,433,347

22.6%

Miscelluncons Professional $693,784

Umbrella §787,295
!;}:;-.r'-‘,g.'s. r Sexual Comifuct $762,395

Directors & Officers $66.3,855

General Liability $5,602,929

.
Inner-City Arts, Los Angeles Connty—Cauts in
firie ;':'.i,-l;:_ff:.r schaal art progranis !r';'o.ra;;-r(-.! the
Sformation of this organization, which now
houses six art classrooms for kids from eleven
J:",If}:"n'r:.’ LA .'f.';).'n;r.-u"r schoals. Inner t','."." t
Ares bas been a NLAC member stnce 1997.

Through companion programs,
NIAC members may also purchase
the following:

+ Commercial Property

Fidelity

« Workers’ Compensation

« Student/Participant/Volunteer
\ L'\‘idf:n t

- Foster Parent Liability



Frienory, ErrFicienT SERvICE

NIAC continues to make service and

efficiency a top priority. A recent sur-

vey revealed that 95 percent of our
members and brokers are satisfied,
(or very satisfied) with NIAC’s
underwriting and claims operations,
At NIAC, we are committed to pro-
viding painless insurance transactions
for members and brokers. Our mem-
bers and brokers trust that our claims
investigation process will be handled

promptly, thoroughly and efficiently.

SPECIAL SERVICES FOR MEMBERS
In keeping with NIAC's philosophy
of proactive loss control, we continue
to provide the following resources to

our members, free of charge:

Publications
+ Arrive Safe and Sound: Tips to
Help with your Nonprofit s Vehicle
Safety Program

-

Sound Advice for Functions and

Events: Tips to Help your

Nonprofit Stage Safer Special Events

+ Nonprofit Directors and Officers:
Key Facts about Insurance and Legal
Liability

- What Nonprofit Managers Need

to Know About Lawsuits

Neavsletters
Two newsletters were distributed to
members in 1998, Topics included
insuring volunteers, transportation

issues and claims information.

Video Lending Library
NIAC video lending library covers a
wide range of topics, available free-
of-charge to members for use in on-
site training. Topics range from driver
safety and employment practices to
the prevention of sexual abuse. Our
Education Coordinator is constantly
reviewing the relevance of NTAC'
video topics, and titles are added or
eliminated as necessary.

Warkshaps
NIAC continues to sponsor statewide
educational events, and to serve as a

resource for insurance and risk man-

agement information for California's

ASSETS (Thousands)

§227%

§31.632
$28.585
$21.767 1
$16.074 1
§10, i‘:'E
85,142
$3.348

1930 1991 1892 1993 1988 1995 1596 1997 1998

nonprofits, NIAC staff made numer-
ous presentations at various locations
around the state on topics including
general insurance information, risk
management, directors and officers
insurance, and how to host safer spe-

cial events.

Continued affiliations with various
nonprofit support organizations have
improved NIAC's ability to reach out
to nonprofits in all corners of Cali-
fornia. During 1998 NIAC cospon-
sored conferences with Nonprofit
Risk Management Center, California
Association of Nonprotits, Nonprofit
Organizations Committee of the
California State Bar, California
Community Foundation, The San
Diego Foundation, Community
Foundation for Monterey County
and Community Foundation of Santa
Cruz County. Furthermore, NIAC

PREMIUMS (Thousands)

£6.143
2 = .’33
‘:1 gog

1“‘30

§12433

!

1928

$11599
§10,305

AN

1996 1997

59 343

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995

)

staff provides training on behalf of
the Support Center for Nonprofit

Management.

On-site Visits
NIAC emplovees made nearly 250
visits to members and brokers in
1998. As we continue to grow, we
strive to learn more about nonprofits
to insure a fair evaluation of their
operations from an insurance per-
spective. We consider our member
visits to be the most enjoyable aspect

of working at NIAC.

Website
Visit NIACs website at www.niac.org.
Members can order publications and
videos on-line, and much of the
material may be downloaded. NIAC
is committed to offering its web-
capable members, the most user

friendly, informative website possible.
5 I

MEMBERS

1990 1981 1992 1993 1934 1935
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CLAIMS

During 1998, in addition to mov-

ing all management of claims to
in-house staff, we also took a closer
look at how we categorize claims.
The statistics below show some
changes from last year. These
changes reflect the adjustments we
made in the way we categorize
claims, rather than any changes in
the complexion, size, or type of

claims we cxpurivncvtl during 1998.

GeneraL Liasiiry

Slip and fall accidents and incidents
alleging negligent supervision still
account for more than 40 percent of
the number of claims on the gener-
al liability policy and nearly 55 per-
cent of the cost of all claims. Shp
and fall accidents, in particular,
could be avoided by more attention

to ]n'n:l!lisc.x s:lﬂ'l}‘.

GENERAL L1ABILITY

Avuro LiasiLiTy

Rear-end accidents, backing and hit-
ting a fixed object remain the most
common classifiable auto incidents.
These three categories comprise a
total of 37 percent of all auto claims
and account for 41 percent of the

dollars spent on auto claims.

To help our members avoid these
accidents, NIAC substantially
increased our free defensive driver
training in 1998. During the year we
trained 700 employee and volunteer
drivers, up from 300 trained during
1997.

CosT

Other

\ Stip & Fall

Negligent Supervision

Directors axp OFFICERS harassment. Consequently, NIAC

During 1998, NIAC members con- members who purchase Directors

: g ; D i NIAC
tinued to receive far too many and Ofticers coverage from NIAC

employment-related claims. The have access to free legal assistance

most common allegations were prior to taking important employ-

wrongful termination, discrimination ment actions of this nature.
and harassment. While few of these
claims result in large settlements,

nearly all are costly to defend.

Our experience demonstrates that
the outcomes of these types of claims
are strongly influenced by the man-
ner in which the nonprofit organiza-
tion handled the termination and/or

the investigation of discrimination or

Avuro LiasiLrry
CosT

Mauing, ather

Backing

[ Hit Fixe:
[0 ffll‘:'f

Typr
Vandalism

Rear-End




MeeT Our MEMBERS

( :;tiii'nmi'.l's nonprofit sector is a
cornucopia of vital organizations.

We relish the opportunity to assist

them and ]u‘n\'idc our members with

their endeavors. As a 501(c)(3) non-
profit ourselves, we are proud to be

assoctated with such a terrific group.

o5 several musical productions each

p teamavork skills

rsince 1995,

y and g an spportunity for at-risk youth to

ts . Oakland Youth Chorus bas been a NIAC memib

the peace of mind necessary to further

N [AC's membership grew by seven
percent in 1998, but the general

composition of the members remained
steady. A statistical Ju]wiﬂiml of the

many services provided by our members

is shown on the ]\iL' chart below.

! I ‘o learn more about the diverse
group of nonprofits who comprise
NIAC, take a few moments to read the

member profiles, enjoy the pictures, and

scan the member list on the following

}".I"'L'!-i.

e
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CENTER FOR THE PARTIALLY SIGHTED

Santa Monica

Thu vision rehabilitation
programs of The Center
for the Partially Sighted pro-
vide the tools and the train-
ing to help men, women and
children with im]mirud sight
function as independently as
Pnsr-iHL' in the r-i_'__{}llcd world,
even if they are legally blind.
An optometrist trained in
low vision ]Wl‘ﬁn'{ﬂ:-‘ an exten-
sive vision evaluation on each
\'i.-"::Jsl—imp;lircd client. Based
on each ]1L'|'.~t::f.~' individual
abilities, the Center develops
4 program using appropriate
devices to maximize remain-

ing sight and help with their

visual goals. In addition, indi-
vidual counseling or support groups help these individuals address any emotional
1ssues that might accompany their vision loss,

Rehabilitation specialists train the person in everyday living skills, such as
cooking, reading or moving safely about their home or neighborhood. Helping
people use their remaining sight allows them to continue funictioning—in the
classroom, in their home and on the job.

Pictured above, a low-vision technician helps a man with impaired sight sign
his name using a signature guide. The Center for the Partially Sighted has been a

NIAC member since 1996.

EasTER SEALS TRI-CounTIiES CALIFORNIA

Ventura

E;mu‘ Scals of Ventura County was founded in 1946 with a mission of help-
ing children and adults with disabilities live with equality, dignity and inde-
pendence. The organization merged with Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo
counties, and 1‘L:inum'lmr;nud in 1989 as the Tri-Counties Easter Seal Sucict_\'.
They later changed their name to Easter Seuls Tri-Counties California.

Pictured below, children from the Easter Seal’s Preschool Program are learning
about colors and how to change them. The year-round program is designed to
serve children of all abilities, and offers support to those children who may have a
diagnosis of autism, dt‘\-’uinpnlull:;i] \iu].l)', Down's H)'Hdr':ﬂllt. cerebral }\‘.L‘.\‘_\‘. fetal
alcohol affect, as well as blind and/or hearing impaired children, The educational
philosophy revolves around age appropriate activities such as water play, dramatic
play, art and gross as well as fine motor activities,

Each child receives appropriate specialized services from trained therapists in
the areas of motor skills, language skills, cognitive skills and socialization. These
services are provid-
ed |3\ Faster Seal’s
highly trained, pro-
fessional staff of
occupational and
physical therapists,
:\|!l.‘k't'|l |1:li]]u|nj_(i.~l.~.
marriage and family
counselors and early
childhood educa-
ton -"\c\'i:1|it~ta.

Easter Seals Tri-
Counties California
has been a NIAC

member since 1992,




Guipe Docs oF THE DESERT

») Yt .
Palm Springs

Guidc Dogs of the Desert has been providing guide dogs and individual
instruction to the blind for over 25 years. The agency charges no fees for
services provided to its students, existing solely through private donations.

Training begins with the puppy-raising program. At six to eight wecks old, the
puppies are placed in volunteer foster homes to be loved and socialized until they
are fifteen to eighteen months old. They are exposed to all types of people and
surroundings, which is the foundation of the training. Next, Guide Dogs of the
Desert professional trainers take over, and work with the dogs until they are fully
trained. Blind students receive 28 davs of in-residence training in a homelike set-
ting at the agency's facility. Post graduate assistance is available for the working
life of the team.

The ageney trains Labrador Retrievers, Golden Retrievers and German
Shepherds. These breeds are intelligent, gentle natured, eager to please and enjoy
working, Their size and coat allow them to '.|d-.1|!| to any environment, and the
general public readily
recognizes them as
guides.

Pictured at left,
two of Guide Dogs
of the Desert trainers
with a batch of
Yellow Lab puppies
ready for foster
homes.

Guide Dogs of
I!!L’ l)l_'?\l_'l't }H_'L“.ll”(_' d
NIAC member in
1998.

Bic BroTHERS BiG SisTERS
OF THE (_‘IRIE:\TI’.R S.-\CR;\.\] ENTO .-".\RI",.-\

Sacramento

ig Brothers Big Sisters of the

Greater Sacramento Area has
been matching children with adult
mentors since 1962, The children
range in age from 7 to 16, and are
often from single-parent families.
The volunteers are carefully
screened and trained adults who
provide friendship, guidance, and
role-modeling to the children. All
volunteers are over the age of 18,
and must be responsible and
dependable.

This Sacramento agency is cur-
rently providing 180 Big Brothers
and Big Sisters to local children,
many of which are growing up
without the support of a two-par-
ent family. Big Brothers Big Sisters
volunteers provide individual interest and companionship for these children dur-
ing their formative years.

Pictured above, Felicia and Shyra have been matched as Big Sister and Little
Sister for one year, They enjoy going to the theatre, making pottery and just
hanging out together. After every outing, they each take a little time to write
about what they did or anything they have on their mind in their journals.

Big Brothers Big Sisters of the Greater Sacramento Area has been a NIAC

member since 1994,




Phaoto by Lionel Fluker

Stires HaLL

Bt'?')('t ’/:.zl,'

sunded in 1884, Stiles
Hall runs mentoring

programs pairing UC

Stiles Ha Berkeley students with
local elementary and high
school students, as well as
elderly and mental health
patients. The 320 student
volunteers represent a
diverse mix of cultures,
including Caucasians,
Latinos, African
Americans and Asian
Americans. The agency
strives to create an environ-
ment to promote lasting interracial understanding where students can learn and
grow through meaningful community service.

[n Sules Hall's Elderly Companionship program, students form friendships

~and growing

with senior citizens. They explore shared interests while learnis
together. Through the Mental Health Internship program, students have an
opportunity to serve as friends and conversationalists with mentally ill patients at
Napa State Hospital. Student volunteers also learn to coach local youth in school-
based sports programs.

Pictured above, a ten-year old Ouakland elementary school student meets his
new mentor. Stiles Hall provides 275 Berkeley and Oakland youth with carefully
screened, highly supervised UC volunteer mentors. The vouth receive 150 hours
of mentoring, tutering, and role-modeling to broaden their cultural and academic
horizons.

Stiles Hall has been a NIAC member since 1990.

CoasTwAaLk oF Sonoma CouNTy

Ssbu_\‘fo/mf

Cnnsnvnlk introduces people to the wonders of the California coastline
through guided trips to various scenic coastal locations throughout
California. Their staff consists entirely of volunteers, from walk leaders to cooks.
Coastwalk offers summer, week-long coastal walks and year-round day hikes.
Their educational and service activities help build public awareness of coasral
preservation, striving for a continuous, border to border California Coastal Trail.
Coastwalk chapters exist in each of California’s 15 coastal counties,

Coastwalk of Sonoma County originated in early 1983 when Bill Kortum, a
former Sonoma County supervisor and long time coastal activist, approached a
small group of local environmentalists. His concept was to draw attention to
coastal access needs by taking a small group of people down the coastline. On that
first walk, in the summer of 1983, 70 people went for an eight day trek on the 55
mile Sonoma County coastline. Over time, the combined efforts of these volun-
teers has greatly increased public awareness toward coastal access issues.

Coastwalk contin-
ues to explore and
promote the opening
of remote and previ-
ously inaccessible sec-
tions of the California
coastline, and pro-
vides a voice for local
coastal advocates.

Coastwalk has
been a NIAC mem-

ber since 1993.

Simone Wilson

walo oy

Ph



PovererLrLo House

Fresno

Pu\'crcl]c: House began in 1973 when its founder, Mike McGarvin saw a need
and addressed it simply: he began handing out sandwiches on the streets to
the hungry and homeless. Others came to lend a hand, and the outreach grew
with the help of local churches, businesses, and volunteers.

In 1981, lhmuj:h the generous contribution of a supporter, Poverello House
was established in its current location on "I" Street in Fresno. "Poverello” is an
[talian word meaning "Little Poor Man,” a name given to Saint Francis ot Assisi,
who renounced all of his wealth and ministered to the poor.

A major expansion and renovation was completed in 1992, adding a family
dining room, a shower and I;mmir}' i';lcilit_\'. offices and a modern kitchen. '|'mla1}'.
Poverello House operates a six-month program for homeless men with alcohol or
drug problems. The residents help with food preparation, driving, and building
maintenance. Poverello also serves meals \i;li]_\' to the homeless who come in from
the streets, offers medical and dental services and provides showers and a “day-
room’ where they can
rest, ,\il{“lilﬂ];l“_\', a food
distribution program
P wides cmergency gro-
l,'t'l'il."* o iu‘nplc \\'}‘In
have homes in which to
[} 1(]1\‘.'

Pictured at left, Mike
MecGarvin and student
intern, Vang Yang, dis-
tribute donated food for
the holidays.

Poverello House
became a NIAC mem-
ber in 1998.

ArLzueiMER'S AssociaTioN oF OrRaNGE CounTy

Orange
L4

L I \he Alzheimer's Association
of Orange County was

founded by Joan Dashiell, a wife
and mother of two teenagers
who suddenly found herself car-
ing for a parent stricken with
this debilitating disease. Joan
gathered some experts together,
and one winter evening in 1982,
more than 60 |\c:\p|c stood 1n
line in the rain to attend the
first educational meeting of
what would become the Orange

County Chapter of the

Alzheimer's Association.

The mission that the founding board established is still valid today: The agency

slance

is "...dedicated to increasing public awareness, iu‘n\"la.linf_{ support and assi

for patients and families of Alzheimer's disease and related disorders, and to sup-
porting research for the cause and cure of Alzheimer's discase.”

The Alzheimer's Association offers a viriety of services to the community,
including a bilingual helpline, support groups, a lending library, "Safe Return”
[.D. bracelet program and visiting volunteers. A wide variety of seminars and con-
ferences are provided for the community annually. Additionally, the program cur-
rently supports 450 volunteers who donate time and expertise for patient and
1111nil_\ services, public policy, educational activities and fundraising events,

Pictured above, an Alzheimer's patient meets with a caregiver for an afternoon
outing in the park. Respite services give families an opportunity to rest and take
care n!‘[n’rmn;ti business while ]1:‘1;\'i\iin;_-. the patient with stimulating activity,

The Alzheimer's Association of Orange County has been a NIAC member

since 1992,

phy

v Robert Bell Photogre
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Work Training Center for the f'f.m:f."r..*/',-'wf.
Butte County—a NIAC member since 1994,
WTC gperates several pr
emposer pesple with disabilities to achicve

increased ."a'.’d'n".'h'}}.-ﬂ'rh':' and enhance the quali

tyof t

Lr g
FrInRs Wnee

N

ir froes; Pictured above, WTC o

'J;",J"r’:‘(!'a .’:h{';‘ ."J'.f'f-:fr' in their contribution.

ALAMEDA

100 Black Men of the Bay Area
45th Streer Artists Cooperative

After School Activities of Pleasanton

ar .r.‘l.'.- Gr INGre years

Aim to Please

Alameda Emergency Food Bank

All Ah We

Allied Fellowship Service

American Indian Child Resource Center

American Indian Family Healing Center

American Indian Lawyer Training Program

Bay Area American Indian Council

Bay Area Black Consortium for Quality
Health Care

Bay Area Friends of Tibet

Bay Arca Health Support and Education
Services

Bay Area Kinder Stube

Bay Area Urban League

Bay Area Women Against Rape

Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association

Berkeley Women's Health Center

Bio Integral Resource Center

Bn\l\';{,l H.{I\ Institure of Pollution l':lnin_;;_\

Bonita House

Buddhist Peace Fellowship

CPEHN

California Instrute for Clinical Social Work

“ahitornia Oak Foundation

~

“alifornia Shakespeare Festival

“anaan Place

cor

“AstTo) \'..11«_\ Hn_\-. and Girls Clubs
Cazadero Performing Arts Camp

Center for Urban Education Abour

Sustainable Agriculture
Central Works

Child Abuse Prevention Agenacy

.

Child Assaulr Prevention Training Center of
California

Children Aceepting Responsibility Everywhere

Children's Health and Well Being

Chochmat Haley

Classical Philharmonic of Northern California

Conciliation Forums of Oakland

i.)'h'.lil'l]il_\ Rights Educanion and Defense
]"luu{

Danald P. McCullum Youth Court

Dunsmuir House and Gardens ;

Easr By I)vpu! tor Creative Reuse

Fast i‘\;i_\ lnrl-l;rnl:i\

Fast Bay Urban Gardeners

Eastenders Repertory Company

Eden Youth Center

Emerwille Community Action Program
Fallen Leat Foundation

Family Builders By Adoption

|‘,u|ii]'\ Emergency Shelter Coalition
Federation of Indian Association of Northern

Californi
Filipinos for Affirmarive Action
I'.illllu!'.l'[l\lll tor L.."-Lh.ll [{(.";L'.ll't'h
I.I'l'\{ l'”l]:\'h (.h]:lllh'l.'ll'\ Home
Friends of the Alameda Free Library
Girls, Ine, of Alameda (_'nlim_\

[;H'h': [\.1.‘\ (‘]ll]l

HIV Education and Prevention Project of
Alameda Counny

Habitot Children’s Museum

I 1t'|;\ Another Toward Creative | L{p]sim‘w

! |1'-\|m|'.1\ s 1n |)hi!.1ll1|n'r1]\_\

I-Pride

Independent Living Skills Program Auxiliary
Institute For Policy Analysis and Research
« lustitate for Food and Development Policy
« International Rivers Network
+ Japan Pacitic Resource Network
_|;i§l.|.l1 LS. (.‘ulnmunill'. Fducation .m.l
Exchange
* Korean (_‘(!IIHI][I!Ii[I\' Center of The East B:I_\'
Kristi Yamaguchi's "Always Dream’
Foundation
LIFE Eldercare
Lake Merrier Institure
I.L‘.!tln':'hi]i]\ '|\I'.'l':1lir1_1_'| ,\n..‘i.il'!”_l

+ League of Volunteers of Newark

Learning Disabilities Association of California
Living Arts Theatre Lab
« Long Range Education Empowerment and
Action Pre rj(\'[
MAICA Family Day Nursery School
« Mary Ann Wright Foundation Ourreach
Mission
Middle East Childrens Alliance

Northern California Chaprer of the National
Hemophilia Foundation

Narika

National Foundation for Integrative Medicine

National Lating Health ¢ }rj_".nlix.lliull

New Village Community Public Charter
School of the Easr Bay

Newark Schools Foundation

Oakland Citizens Committee for Urban
Renewal

Oakland Museam of California Foundarion

+ Oukland Youth Chorus

« Our Family and Friends Foster Care Services
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* Over 21 Burre * Work Training Center for the
Pacific Rim Homestays ARC of Butte Counny Fandicapped
Prevention Txstiturs Access for Independence * Youth tor Change
* Alzheimer's Discase and Related Disorders * Yuba Feather Communities

Producers Associates

Association Services
Project Re-Connect « Burte County Children’s World
* Rand L Children’s Home Butre County Mounted Shenifts Posse CALAVERAS
* Rubicon Children's Center Catalvst Women's Advocates Gold Country Alliance for the

San .\:1:1'11‘:uL'-m;'.::'m::_\ ]h-\u‘;npl:u':|r Chico Art Center .\]:'.’It-l”_\ I

Corporation Chico Creek Theatre Festival * Humane Sociery of Calaveras
» San Francisco l"..l:i_‘. Music Sox ety o Chico Museum Asspeiation County
* Seneca Restdential and Day Treatment Center Community Action Agency of Butte County * Volunteer Center of Calaveras
County Clayton Community Library Foundation, Contra

Family Life Foundation

Sexual Minority Alliance of Alameda Counry

Coasta Connty—a NIAG member since 1996. The

Four Winds of Indian Education " . y
Foundation provides over a hundred volunteers

Golden State Group Hlomes Conrra CosTa

Shelter Agunst Violent Environments

Spectrum Community Services whs perform various services, including a "Books
\ « Giridley Guardian \ftordable “n'-l-i”:: Association it 3o " o .

Spectrum Home Health Care o — _]' i & for the Homebound program, Internet Daocent

Fal . ||t-‘_|| 4-People ol Pittsburg

Stiles Hall S Miance . ‘1t 1 oof

< . * Independent Living Services of Northern Aliance for the Mentally 1l of

I'he Working Group

velunteers and reshelving books. Pictured above, a

Baok Buddy” reads to a small group sf childven.

California Contra Costa Counry

* Third Apc Innovative Preschool Anglican Cursillo of California
United Indian Nations Kole Foundition Behaviorl Intervention Association
University of Creation Spirituality and Friends North \j'{}r_\ Community Foundation California Aurism Foundation East _I,"l." Services to the “"“-I"1‘”“'"{"“.‘
of Creation « North Vallev Schools * Cambridge Community Center . i)’”\t]“l Pr
3 l\][‘”“ ‘I‘I.\IT:.:,-,]_.I[:i.r‘,“::ll:\ Susugl Paradise Animal Shelrer Helpers Camping Unlimited for Retarded Children . i ‘ .” [. I“I‘“I.-' .“ ‘l‘ ”.“ i
Paradise Center for Attitudinal Healing Cancer Research Fund of Contra Costa pediial e loinn el
VLR Vs Enilicy » Paradise Scholarship Foundation Counts Gay-Lesbian-Straight Education Nerwork
« Walden Foundation * Paradise Strive Center Celebrating Culture And Community =Sian Franciscoand;EastBey
WRRLK * Peg Taylor Center for Adult Day Health + Center for Applied Local Research GrasnerRichinond Tatoriith Prograny
Women of Faith Recovery Home 3 Privare Indistey: Council « Conter for New Americans * Guardian Adult Health Centers of California
Wonen's Alliance * 5t. Vincent De Paul Society-Sacramento Clavton Community Library Foundarion Hands Untied
 Women's Economic Agenda Project Distriet Council B iyt L | TOUIEE O N Heartsent \dui!tinlh
v {I,.I[I““[!.. - Sase : : Contra Costa Interfaith Transitional Housing “iHgiagok Chimpng eaip e
AMADORH « Unired Way of Butte and Glenn Counties Ot Hashdisn Sieviees « Independent Adoption Center
« ARC of Amador and Calaveras Counties « Valley Oak Children's Services : Disville @ Cliotis Justice for Murder Vierims

Vectors e ; :

' 4 i Kensington Commumity Couneil

=« Mictor Treatinent Cente = [ast Bay Center for the Performing Arts o ’
Mentaring Youth at Risk Progrium

mber for five or more years ];
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* Mt. Diablo Interpretive Association
* Neighborhood House of North Richmond

Nuture Company

* Ombudsiman Services of Contra Costa County
'IEIL'.U‘.'. \\‘r:l".\

2R

Pru;\'.'

« SHEL

- .‘\]‘:".unu\ Academy

Steven A Genard AIDS Assistance F

se House

Women's '1\!1g'r.'=]‘_\ Center

DeL NorTE

* Wild Feline Rescue

ErL Dorapo

Casa of El Dorado

Choices Transitional Services
* Delora Corporation

= El Dorado Arts Council

] Dorado Comi ty Foundation
* El Dorado National Forest Interpretive
\ssociation
Foothill Indian Education Alliance
Mother Lode Rehat

* Oak Ric

10n l:n‘.s'lluiw--

re High School Sports Booster Club

Pinole Area Sentor Foundation

Sacramento Children's Museum

ural Ars (

Sierra €

* Sierra Recovery Center
J..!‘Iil-t' I allac Association
* Tahoe Turning Point
I'ahoe Youth and Family Services

Voluntary Action of Sou Lake T

* denoles \.Ir. 10 member for froe or more .'...J"

.

Fresno

Alano Club of Fresno
All About Care
Alleluia

Al

.\Hl' 1\I]ll.“.':n':'.-.[.Ell_' .\il'\ill..'.il \!: L-l'!”t‘:'

ive Vocarional Choices

L F

\ssociated Center for -i.]iL'T-'-;‘_\

Big Brothers/Bir Sisters of Fresno (_‘uum_\
California Association for Physically

I ].l:‘.-_l-!\.l.;\‘l‘L'J-—J resno County l_‘|\.1]\1t\'r

Cal Health Collaborative Foundation

Camp Shalom

Central California Nikkei Foundation 4 >

bt i, ~ i
Central Valley AIDS Team Evangel Home, Fresno County—a NIAC member since 1994, Evangel Home serves homeless women
Cenrral Valley Children's Services Network and children by mecting their physical needs, promoting personal development and encauraging spiri-

Contrn T Famnilin- Advocacy:Surdie tual growth, Pictured above, a graduate from the home’s nine=month basic living skills program.

Centro La Famiha de Fresno

Court Appointed Special Advocates of Fresno

County Il('\\'i-il \\‘l'!:.ll(' Federation of I"H.'-\HH I i[|_\|"{]|‘|]'i'

Ev | Home :\l:il'i:n'rr Mason Center * Arcata .\lr[\'h\]:'_\'\i‘l!{' {_']iih]ﬁ'n'\ Center
Fair Housing Council of Fresno County OSA Women's Center * Dell Arte!
Fresno Center for New Americans Poverello House Environmeéntal Protection
- - 3 . ¥ . - 1 Intormation Center
Fresno Leadership Foundation * Rape Counseling Service of Fresno
’ o ; Ferndale Repertory Theater
Fresno .\Il".|-|]\|-'||'..1.|1 Ministry Ihe 1 wing Room ) ) B
] . = S - Friends of the Arcata Marsh
Fresno Pacific Service Corporation United Way of Fresno Counry
. Mook . . > . i ; Hight Community Service
Fresno Plavhouse and Fresno (€ L l::m'm-\n_\ Religious Center H L - “' )
o e : : . umbaoldt Bay Housing
Playhoust Valley Caregiver Resource - -
A : g Corporation
Fresno Rescue Mission Center 1 ) 2 = )
v < P Humbolde Botanical Gardens Foundation
Fresno Unity Group Homes ererans Crisis Programs Sy LI -
i e : = Humboldr Family Serviee Centes
|:‘»lm\-»l.lhUln;!u..ln.u.l.\-l Volunteer Bureau of |11..1u(_m|r|[_\ s HumBbold Redwoods
Friendship Center {or the Blind Interpretive Association
Highway City Community [J("-l'!”l“!ll'!'l! (GLENN * Institute for Wildlife Srudics
House of ]]ulm' for Yourh \.ulu_lu.n|||||| \'.l”r_\ * Glenn County Senior Center Messiah School of Ares
Intant of |’|.~:.-'.n' Conmnse i1||:_=_ and .\d-\i'lltnn = North Coast I’-i:{ B rlhr\'l'-'|5i_~:_ Sisters
- N P . U =
i = North Coast Rape Crisis Team
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« North Coast Redwood ll\ltqlrt‘ti\'t
Association
Northern California Cultural
Communications
Pacific Art Center
Pacific Coast |"§.~'h. Wildlife and Wetland
Restoration Association
|’i.'l!‘i=li'.1 ﬁ\‘}lmal
Southern Humbolde Senior Care
+ Sumeg Patricks Point Lagoons Interpretive
Assoc i‘il'lull
* Unired Way of Humbold:
Women's Crisis Shelter in Southern
Humbuoldt

IMPERIAL

Association for Retarded Citizens
Valley

Imperial

Invo
+ Inyo Counal for the Arts

* Ombudsman/Advocacy Services of Inyo and
Mono Counties

Kern
Arthritis Assoctation of Kern County—
Adaprive Aquatics Center
Bakersficld Society for the Prevention of
Cruelty o Animals
Bethany Services
Court Appointed Special Advocares of Kern
(‘{"1”[_\'
+ Car People
« Communry Medical Education and Research

Foundation

.

High Desert Child Abuse Prevention Council

* Kern Bridges Youth Homes

Kern County Firefighters Burn Survivors
Trust

Kern County Hispanic Commission on

Alcohol and Drug Abuse

Kern County Mental Health Association

New Advances for People with Disabilities

Redrock Canyon Interpretive Association
Vallev Achievement Center

Youth Connection

Kings

* Kings Community Action Organization
+ Kings United Way

* Lemoore Christian Aid

* Lemoore Senior Citizens

Lake

« Anderson Marsh Interpretive Association

» Clear Lake Gleaners
Community and Family Network
Healdsburg Arts Council

 Tighlands Senior Service Center

* Lake County Big Brothers and Sisters

o Live Oak Seniors

* Lucerne Alpine Senior Center

Triple § Institute

[LASSEN
Lassen County Coundil on Aging
Mountain High Homes

+ Spare A Dime

Los ANGELES

« African Community Resource Center
Akila Conceprs

= Al Wooren, Jr. Heritage Center
Ala Nest
Alzheimer's Association of Los Angeles
Aman Folk Ensemble
America Care Foster Family Agency
American Media Council on Child Abuse

An Claidheamh Soluis

.

Aresis Ensemble

Arroyo Arts Collective

Asian Pacific American Dispute Resolution

Center

Assistance League of Downey

Assistance League of the East San Gabriel

Valley

Associated League of Mexican Americans

Awareness Foundation
Baldwin Park Community Food Center

Bell Gardens Community Services Center

Beverly Hills Theatre Guild

Black Artists Network Development
Boys and Girls Club of San Pedro
Break the Cycle

Brittany Foundation Animal Sancruury
Building on Sobricty

CHP 11-99 Foundation

CLARE Foundation

California Association of Nonprofits

California Ci

wgress of Parents, Teachers
California Foundation for Mental Health,
Education

Apollo West Theatre Drama and Workshop

California Institute of Heulth and Social
Services

California Men's Gathering

= California State Student Association
California Youth Chess League
California Youth Theatre
Camp Pacitic Hleartland

+ Cantori Domino

Carroll Shelby Children’s Foundation

Batersfield SPCA, Kern County—a NIAC
member since 1997, The SPCA helps to ensure
the humane treatment of all animals and
f:::p;'ﬂ-x e thetr q.rm!:'{'.' o_,f'!'f"/.". Pretured above, a
valunteer poses with a feline friend,

* denotes NIAC rh‘:‘mfn'r_ﬁ;r_;‘.;:';‘ Or Mare Vears 17
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L.A I-}uu!{r Housing C .'or}r)»;mrr'au. Los Angeles sounly —a NIAC mentber since 1993. LAFHC
served over 11,000 men, women and children .":f.n‘_rrm' {Xu‘s.-'.:;{[l emergency shelters, transitional and

Cutaling Youth Arts Exchange
Catholic Big Brothers

Center tor Fluman Ri_'_i!lh and Constiturional
I-.l“'

Center for the i'.lrtin”} Hi;]l?l'\i
Central San Fernando Valley Alliance
Cenrro Latino de Education Popular
Challengers Boys and Girls Club

Child Focus

Children's Cancer Research Fund

.

Children's Institute International

Llhhil'\l' .\“li'l Wwians l .“.!Il'l{ tor
Self=Empowerment

City Impact

Coalition of Mental Health Professionals

Community Coalition for Substance Abuse
Prevention

Community Iln-wl-u;-mrm Center

Community Qutreach Center of Pasadena

Concern Foundation

affordable permanent bousing and supportive services offered at 19 separate sites.

« denates NTAG mer

"IN GF Iare Years

Conejo P],l_\'t'h
* Cri-help

[D'Veal Corporation

David and .\I.H'g.lil‘1 Home

Daybreak Community Development
* Delta Sigma Thera Life Development

+ Didi Hirsch Cor

Center

nunity Mental Health

Discovery Fund for Eye Research and
National Keratoconus Foundation
District Attorney Crime Prevention

Foundation

* Do It Now Foundation of Southern California

* Door of Hope
* Dramatic Results
* Drew Child Dev

= Earth Communications Office

poent (-nl'ih ration

* East Los Angeles Rape Hot Line
* Ecumenical Council of the Pasadena Area
Churches
Egremont Schools
Ehlers-Danlos National Foundation
El Camino Children and |"'.|u:1]_\ Services
= El Rescate Legal Services
* Family Hope
Fiesta Educativa
Foothill Friends of Music
* Fred Brown's Recovery Services
¥

Friends of L‘}'I‘,.:L'L'."

ends of Banning Park Corporation

Friends of McGroarty Culturad Arts Center
* Friends of Robinson Gardens
Friends of the Open School

Friends of the San Marino Public Library

0

Jefterson Center for C

Getty House Foundation

Goodwill Industries of Ventura and Santa

Barbara Counties
Grand Vision Foundation
Grant Beckstrand Cancer Foundation
Guardians of Love
Guidanece ('u:mm::lil_\ Develd ypment € ‘enter
Hancock Park Elementary School Booster
Club
Harbor Area Gang Alternative Program
Harbor Community Development
Harbor Gatew ay Center
Haven Hills
Heads-Up
Heal the Bay

Health Promotion Institute

II‘.'.]1[I'|L.',[T(' .":l{ 1-. i-L'T {..'.\\' l}rlillJTFy

l IL'.IIT Touch

Hemophilia Foundation of Southern
California

||l'[]LiL‘r"i\:l t"I”\T”lHH[-\ L..k'rllll".

Hermandad Mexicana Nacional

Hollywood Urban Project

Homenetmen Ararat Chaprer

Homestead Hospice and Shelrer

Imperial Home

Inglewood Neighborhood Housing Services

Inner Circle Foster Family Agency

Inner City Arts

Institute for Multicultural Counseling and
Education Services

International Foster Family Agency

Iraida Foundation

acter Education

Ju:w L. Mazer Lesbian Collection
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KHMEIR Center

Keep Youth Doing Something

Kenny Nickelson Memorial Foundation

Korean American Coalition

= L.A. Coalition to End Homelessness

+ LA, Family Housing Corporation
L.A. Police Reserve Foundation

+ LA Tenth Distrier PTA Congress of
Parents, Teachers

La Academia De Arte Yepes

La Dora's Family Services

Liegaey Families

Life Services

Little Landers Fistorical Society

Little Tokyo Service Center

Living In Recovery

|,la|1:.: Beach Baller Arrs

I.lil]_'_: |iL'.'\']I t.‘f'.‘li]‘ll'n "llr I I\'.I]EI\\' E\.lll‘\
+ Los Angeles Baroque Orchestra

+ Los Angeles Chamber Singers

Los Angeles Children's Chorus

+ Los Angeles Municipal Arr Gallery Associates

Los _-'\n_uc]ra Theater Alliance

+ Los Angeles Womens Foundation

Marianne Frostig Center of Educational
Therapy

Marina del Rey Anglers
Mary Pickford Foundation

Meals on Wheels of La Mirada

Montebello Community Gang Diversion T
Force
Multicultural Service Center

My First School

« National Council On Alcoholism and I.)I'H_'-;
Dependency

National Health Foundation

Navarro Avenue Tremont Howard Association
\L‘i;]nl«uluu sl Youth Association

Network Project

New Outlook Boys Home

Ninos Latinos Unidos

\i\_'_{.t]l."‘- Noble i(n'_‘,:iltu‘n: Boosters

North Hollywood Group

Nuevo Amanecer Latino Children's Services

Ocean Park Community Center

One Institute: International Gay And Lesbian
Archives
Oralingua School for the Hearing Impaired

Pacitic Ackworth Friends School

= Pacific Resident Theatre Ensemble
2 ]'.'—.1'1':1::11_;: Institute
Pasadena Boys' Choir
Pasadena Shakespeare Company
Peace and Joy Care Center
+ Peninsula Commirree for the LA
Philharmonic
Peninsula Friends of the Library
Peregrinos De Emaus
» Pets Are Wonderful Support
+ Planer Hope
Pomona Valley Center for Community
Development
» Pomona Valley Community Services
« Pomona Valley Youth Employment
Portals House and The Corporate Cookic
Positive Alternative Choices
» Pueblo Y Salud

.

.

Purple Henrt Veterans Rehabilitation
DErVICeS

Reason Foundation

Recording Artist, Actors and Athletes

Refugio Para Ninos

Region 2 of Overeaters Anonvmous

Roscomare Road Booster Club

Rosemary Children's Service

.\;dn I'.L'f]l.!‘llil‘ \‘.l”('.\ |"Iil'|:ll'- (4} } ] |l‘."|ll_']\"‘
Women and Children

San Gabriel Valley Alliance for the

Mentally 1
Santa Clarita Valley Bovs and Girls Club
Santa Maria House

Santa Moniea li.l_\ Area Drug Abuse
Council

Santa Monica Symphony Association

Sequoyah Educational Center

Services Center for Independenr Living

Shathever High School

N]‘l]l' L“!LI!‘:T_'. I'}'I'l.']\i.l'[‘“l‘-

Society for Calligraphy

Society of Saint Vincent de Paul—Council of
Los Angeles

Soledad Enrichment Action

songwriters Resources and Services

Sonshine Youth Services

South Astan Nerwork

South Bay Coalition

South Central Food Distributors

Southern California Association of Non-Profit

Housing

Southern California Ecumentcal Council

n California Foster Family Ag

since 1995, KYDS sta
Dor
ment program for at-risk.
Pictured above, a L.A.RD. offi

some kids about choices and CONSEGUENTES,

and

25 does fust L

talks wi

Southern California Rehabilitation Services
Southern California Women for

Inderstanding

Southwest Chamber Music Society

St. Francis House
Student Travel And Research School
* Substance Abuse Foundation of | ong Beach

Teens Happy Home

+ Living Cent

- -I-]'.L"I o

19
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Valley Home for Women
Is Alanon Club

* Volunteers of America of Los \I"_:\'i-'-

WRATD Agency

* Watts
Four

o West

Health Systems, Watts FHealt)

West
West
* Whitrier € 1 Arts Fo I
Wings of Refug
Youth Development Parmership Program

Mapera
Madera Coalit

Shared Ministries—Easterr

NIAC miieond

Marin AIDS Interfaith Nerwork * Marin Education Fund
Marin Alane Club

* Marin Athletic Foundatior

Marin Institute for Prevention of \lcohol and

Other Drugs

Marin Interfaith Homeless Chaplaincy

* Marin

Marin Bocee Federation

. : X . 1 *erfor yir g
* Muarin Child Abuse Prevention Council Pertorming Star

Marin Senior Coordinating Council

Narin Child Care Council
* Marin City

Children's Proeram » Marin Services tor Men

Marin Services tor Women
= Marrix
Meals of Marin

\l.!:i‘i L.|‘-!\ H.l‘ll',': \\‘II\'I.I:I""I

= Marin Community Food Bank

.
.

Marin Council of

\eencics

Mill Vidley Schools Community Foundation

Marin Court Appointed Special Advocare

Program

A3 2

loe: An Art

s Program for

Hoiiicle
Elpida Fouse
Environmental Forum of Marin
Face the World Foundation

ss Children

Fair Housing of Marin

Friends of Corte Madera Creek

\rts

a NIAC member since 1990, SLDC

wd young adulls with e ohy, language and

v Development Center, Orvange Connty
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Mountain Play Association

Mt. Tamalpais Interpretive Association

National Society of Fund Raising
Executive—Golden Gate Chapter

Nepalese Youth Opportunity Foundation
New Century Chamber Orchestra
Northbay Children's Center

Northbay Ecumenical Homes

Novato Human Needs Center

Novato Youth Center

* Parent Services Project

Parents United

Phillips-Morrison Institute of California
Public Art Works

S.E.E.D./School Environmental Education
Docents

* San Geronimo Valley Art Center
Sausalito Salvage Shop

Senior Access

Shakespeare at the Beach
Sight and Insight

Stupski Family Foundation

Summer Secarch Foundation

Trips for Kids

Voices of Healing

Volunteer Center of Marin County

WILDCARE: Terwilliger Nature Education
and Wildlife

West Marin Community Radio

Youth Service California

MARIPOSA
* Almost Like Home

Economic Development Corporation
of Mariposa County

Mariposa County Arts Council
Mariposa County Fish and Game

Protective Association
* Mariposa Golden Agers
* Mountain Crisis Services

* SPCA of Mariposa County

MEenpocino
Arena Renaissance Company
Chokling Tersar Foundation
E Center

Emergency Sancturay for Coastal Acts

Ford Street Project

Gualala Community Center

Inter-Tribal Sinkyone Wilderness Council

Lords Land

* Mendocino Coast Botanical Gardens
Preservation Corporation

Mendocino Coast Christian School

Mendocino County Public Broadcasting
KZYX Radio

Mendocino Dispute Resolution
Mendocino Food and Nutrition Program
Mendocino Latinos Para La Comunidad
Mendocino Theatre Company
Pacific Environmental Education Center
Pacific Textile Arts
Point Arena Lighthouse Keepers

* Project Sanctuary
Redwood Children's Services
Redwood Project for Healing
Thomas More Preparatory School

MEerceD

* A Woman's Place of Merced County
Central Valley Opportunity Center

* Challenged Family Resource Center
Love Inc. of Greater Merced

Merced-Mariposa District Council of
St. Vincent de Paul

Mopoc
Alturas Community Theater

* Modoc Child Care Council
Modoc Work Activity Center
Resources for Indian Student Education

+ TEACH.

Monwo
Watershed Management Council

MONTEREY

Alzheimer's Association—Monterey County
Chapter

Blind and Vision Impaired Center of
Monterey County

Business and Education Alliance of the
Monterey Penninsula

Carmel Performing Arts Festival

Central Coast Center for Independent Living

Central Coast Hospice Foundation and
Fricnds of Hospice

Chamber Music Monterey Bay
Charitable Council of Monterey County

Coalition of Homeless Services Providers

Community Human Services

Dixieland Monterey

* F.O.0.D. Crops

* Forest Theatre Guild
Friends Outside in Monterey County
John XXIII Aids Ministry
Leadership Gilroy
Lyceum of Monterey County

* Meals on Wheels of the Monterey Peninsula
Monterey Bay Blues Festival
Monterey County Youth Museum
Monterey Peninsula College Foundation
Monterey Peninsula Jr. Golf Association
Operations Shoe Strings

Pacific Cetacean

Pacific Repertory Theatre
Peacock Acres Group Homes
SPCA of Monterey County

* Second Chance Youth Program

Veterans Transition Center of Monterey
County

* Volunteer Center of Monterey County

* Youth Music Monterey

Nara

Alternatives in Action
Community Counscling Center
+ Community Health Clinic Ole
Family Service of the North Bay
Friends of Lincoln Theater
* Friends of the Napa River
Lifeworks
Napa Alternatives for Children

Napa County Council for Economic
Opportunity

* denotes NIAC member for five or more years 21
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Napa Little League Annie's House Girls and Boys Club of
Napa Swim Club « Asian American Senior Citizens Service Garden Grove
Napa Valley Alano Club Center God's International

» Assistance League of Newport-Mesa Resource Link

1z Festival

Napa Valley

Big Brothers and Sisters of Ora

ge County « HOM.E.S.

* Second I!t‘l'[ s Thrift Sh P

) ) o Blind Children's Learning Center Hearts United Grandpar-
.\'!. Iii'h'!n.l 1'.”:”"\ L('i]{l'f. e hold
i Bovs Club of Laguna Beach ents/Grandchildren
Suscol Council : :

Volunteer Center of \.!5‘.1 County

Bovs and Girls Club of Tustin Hearts for the Homeless

inity Education Center : .
- Inside l‘.\]_:‘r

» California Health Decisions

Califormia Institute for Chinese Performing International Visitors and

"We Care’ Animal Socisty 2 ) e : Family Care Foundation, Riverside County—a
e R Arts Protocol Foundation of Orange County NIAC me 1997, The Fonndation seeks to
Wildlife Rescue Center of Napa County California State University Fullerton Alumni « lrvine Senior Foundation criluin Clife for the global canmun
, . 5 st . : ; winth tho hatviteter-
Yountville Focus Association Jewish Homes for the Aginig.of Oranpe and fo f { < youth thraugh character
: & z - 2 - L= Mt AERN Y AR EA T I STl | S b e
Cancer Support Foundation of Los Alamitos Ciunty butldin ...I",I.r..nlrr,.'. ..J.',..."I_;.mu.r.rn. : ! .1.<.|’.I'|1-I‘Ird."r'n ey it
Medical Center = valunteer distributes food to familics of migrant
. LR LA . pt
Jev I”;t I'!;"J 1 "'.f'."{' Ty .‘If" ‘.f’--'h'l'”-'-lrn'.’") .11:1'.\"1"/.
‘\ EVADA Cardiac Arrhythmias: Research and Education . " . )
. . . e 7 : . > tde Cance “erion
Christian Encounter Ministries Foundation Kids Cancer Connectios

« La Monte Academie

EnCamy I'he Center for Narural » Casa Teresa

Learning Rhythms

Child Guidlinics Cantr Laguna Beach Educational Foundation

‘..‘hl!.".‘] L-' ".‘l]l'.l fors ( .rlii]c{ I s ll] I ltlll'-l'
Leadership Conceprs

- 1 P Nlprimage Family Therapy Center
ik of Nevada County Pilgrimage Family Therapy Center

» Food B:

.

Foundation of Resources for ['.l||;.;]|:\ and Pressing on Chiristian Fellow .~|1:]l

Christian Center for }'I:HII.'.]_\ Care

‘."1”.‘”“"” i’rui:'\T Create

. l .1'.[{1"[“]!”\ 'I‘[\:I!I ITOW

Marv's Shelter

Concept 7

Gold Country Telecare Project 1r1ii\']u:m11'|hr

Cooper Fellowship A HE : ; 3
RO[ = 1 » S.E.E. Center for the Advancement of Deal

Children

* Sierra \.i,unii:ir\:. SCTVICces N
Mission Cire

Costa Mesa Senior Corporation

's Serviees

Sierra Nevada Childre . } ) . .
Newport Harbor Educational Foundation

s e W o aradi O d sty Court Appointed Special Advocates of Orange » Saint Mary and All Angels School
O WVay of Nevads nt Coanis Vs o R o) R . L
b ] .\t\\i rt Mesa H.l]m.l_\ Hanse o _\.I”_‘ s Fund
Crists Assistance Program No Square Theates :
() » Samadana
RANGE o DAV, Charities of Greater Los Angeles ; N i Py Gy
\BC | I v A ahaleclabily taRasabint Ans Orange Coast Interfaith Shelter « San Clemente Hizh School Triton Booster
1 vster I v Agency 1y g : % : i
y ; Delhi Community Center + Orange County Community Development Club
a Club of Garde STOVE . > i ) St
\lang Clul Garden Groy Development Solunons Coungil + Sun Clemente Seniors
hance for the Mentally 1 of Orange N Irange C s Congregation C 1 . -
.“I ‘1 L L len 1y 11] ) AN !l H"u:l.il- I I”m:m” { 1,.”1.1_‘1 L_””'_'I.‘ & ﬂl]__,:c.l._.,nh n Communty Shodlsof St .\I.ll'\'
County Organization ’
; = Equipping Todav's Church . - X Sheepfold
o Alzheimer's Association of Orange County 1P : + Orange County Fair Housing Council o
; e + Families Forward o A ; « Shelrer for the Homeless
America on Track Pacitic Coast ]-1.-|'=|ln_\ b TH TS ety s Il S
A a o ’ Fashioned Forward Ministries L . . : ; South County Sentor Services
Anaheim |h.!|;u-|'..la.':. 1 Community Cenrer : ¥ Par MeCormick Educational Foundation dail iy LALLLS AL
( ity and Leshian Communiry Services Cen « Southern Califormia Indian Center

o Analicim Interfaith She . I}('l'}‘]i‘ for Irvine Community Health

of Orange County

» denste \j;’lf IICINOCT o7 .‘.'-\'. GF Iere Yedrs
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* Southwest Minority Economic Development Prusmas
Association Siats . .
b ' * Plumas Crisis Intervention Resource Center
+ Speech and Language Development Center

Star 6 Children's Foundation
H:‘l:. I“'.!"‘ xillll\ l'-II\TL'T [".!::1‘[].\ '\:\'!]\'_\'
Syntone Treatment Center

= Toastmasters International

= Trinity College of Graduare Studices
\'.:ﬂc_\ View Chnistian Preschool of |..t;11:1.1
Hills
Vietnamese Community of Orange County
Viemamese I.v.l::iL' nfl)r.m;x' l'uu::'._‘.
* Volunteer Center of Greater Orange County
* Western Youth Services

* YWCA of Central QOrange L‘-Jl]l!l_\
* YWCA of South Orange County

Pracer

* Alliance for the Mentally 11 of Placer County
* Auburm Women's Center
Child Abuse Prevention Council of Placer
County

Childrens Psychological Clinic

* Placer Dispute Resolution Service
* Roseville Community Health Foundanion
Roseville Home Start
* Sierra Council on Aleoholism and Drug
|Jr.'|‘L'|'.\".|'||n-
* Sierra |'-.|[1i5|_\ Services

Sierra Foothills AIDS Foundation

» Sierra Vista Center

Somerser Home School

Squaw Valley Community of Writers

Sun City Roseville Foundation

Plumas Job Training Center

RAINBOW Family Support and Resource

Nenwork

Roundhouse Council

RiveRrsiDE

.\- (I!‘.ﬂ:-l'!l to Serve .\I.IT).]\II'iL‘-\

Assistance League of Riverside

Banning Youth Center

Beaumont State Pre-School L‘i"l"l‘lﬂ.ﬁiilll

Bovs and Girls Club of Coachella Valley

Court Appointed Special Advocares of
Riverside l‘nlm!'\'

Central k'u'.m[_\ United \\",L_\

Chastella

Children of Parkinsonians

Children’s Playtime Productions

Coachella Valley Historical Society

Colombiere Rerrear Center

Desert Forum

Do

Check Retreat

Fair Housing Council of Riverside Counry

Family Care Foundation

Family Service Association of Western

Riverside k'--lllal_\
Friends of the .'\.’Hri-t]‘r \“liil:_\' Indian
Museum
Guide Dogs of the Desert
Idyllwild HELP Center
Indinn Child Welfare Consortium
Inland Auds Project

Inland Empire Concilio de la Raza

Johnson Manor Ramona Bowl Music Assaciation

Kris' Camp/Therapy Intensive Programs Reichart and Dodd Foundation

* Living Free Animal Sancruary Reynaldo I Carreon M.D. Foundation
Mary's Merev Center Riverside County Latino Commission on

National Parenting Institute Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services

North County Community AIDS Partnership * Riverside Medical Clinie Foundation
Palin: Canvon Theiter Riverside Recovery Resources

n i . . . S TOTT 1 iy “are Coneartt
. I)‘”“.l“"‘]”i‘ to Preserve ||!lit‘i‘(‘l1ill_‘1i1 |.1\'!11;‘, San (nu;‘nmu Child Care Consortium

« Prime of Life * Senior Dayeare Center/David Kahn Cenrer

* Shelter from the Storm

Pure Rock Christian Fellowship

American Leadership Forum—Mountain Valley Chapter, Sacramento Connty—a NIAC member
since 1997, ALF sceks out proven leaders in the community, and brings them together to enbance
the Vo act in the public interest. Pictured above, Fellowws from an ALEF six-day wilderness

experience celebrate reaching the summit of the Sierva Buttes.

reapact

= denotes NIAC wiemd

(]

w3
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Soroptimist House of Hope

Sun City Concern

Teen Challenge of Southern California
"U" Turn for Christ
Valley Lutheran Retirement Community

Valley Restart Shelter

.

Variety Children's Charities of the Desert
Tent 66

Well in the Desert

Envirenmental Health Coalition, San Dicgo
County—a NIAC member since 1992. The
Coalition is dedicated to the prevention and
cleanup of toxic pollution through education,

maon ffg:'fug Lovernment and industry and

empawering the public to bave their voices

f.‘"{ 'g.‘!‘r-‘{

o denotes NIAC member for five or more years

SACRAMENTO

.

Alzheimer's Association, Greater Sacramento
Area Chapter

America Against Grathn

American Leadership Forum—Mountain
Vallev Chapter

American River Parkway Foundation

Another Choice, Another Chance

Asian Pacific Rim Foundation

Asian Peace Officers” Association

Asian Resotrces

Associated Family Therapy tor Ettective
Recovery

Berter Life Children Services

Big Brothers Big Sisters of the Greater
Sacramento Area

Boys and Girls Clubs of Greater Sacramento

Breaking the Cyele Trearment Programs

Business for the Environment-Global Futures
Foundation

Calitornia Channel

California Child, Youth and Family Coalition

Calitormia Consortium rto Prevent Child
Abuse

Californin Hispanic Commission on Alcohol
and Drug Abuse

California Inland Fisheries Foundation

California Partnership for Children

California Rural Indian Health Board

California State University Sacramento Trust
Foundation

California Tax Education Council

California Wildlife Federation

Californians for Population Stabilization

Camp Fire Boys and Girls Sucramento Sierra
Council

Chemical Dependency Center for Women

Child and Family Institure

Communities in School of Sacramento

Community Enterprises

Diogenes Youth Services

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Expo and Job Fair

El Hogar Mental Health and Community
Services of Sacramento

Elk Grove Historical Society

Fairytale Town

Families United

Family Service Agency of the Greater

Sacramento Area

Francis House of Sacramento
Freeman Children's Services
Gold Rush Classic

Golden State Muscum
Happy Tails Pet Sancruary
Head Trauma Support Project

Healthy Commumnity Forum for the Greater
Sacramento Region

His Farm

Home Assistance and Repair Program for

Seniors
Haome at Last
Human Resources Consultants
Indian Dispute Resolution Services
Intertaith Service Bureau
Iroko Foundation
ltatian Cultural Society
Kaplan Foundation
Law Enforcement Chaplainey
Lekotek Family Resource Center

Living in Familiar Enviconments

Meadowview Community Action

Mental Health Association—Sacramento
Chapter

Mexican-American Alcoholism Program

Michels Education Institute

National Foundation for the Treatment of
Abused Children

National Visiting Teachers Association

New Horizons Counseling Center

Omni Programs

One Shoe Crew

Pacific Crest Trail Association

Project Ride North

River City Recovery Center

River Oak Center tor Children

Sacramento Alliance for the Mentally 111

Saeramento Area Emergeney Housing

Sacramento Area Firefighters Burn Center

Sacramento Black Aleoholism Center

Sacramento Hlearing Services Center

Sacramento Loaves and Fishes

Sacramento Museum of History, Science and
.|.l.'l.'|1|!1||:|:_:‘\'

Sacramento Occupational Advancement
Resources

Sacramento Society for the Blind

Senior Center of Elk Grove

Serene Community Homes

Sierra Curtis Neighborhond Association

Sierra Regional Ski for Light

St. Francis Home for Children

St. John's Shelrer for Women and Children

Stnford and Lathrop Memorial Home tor
Friendless Children

Training Toward Self-Reliance
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Upper Sacramento River Exchange
[’Ptn\\'n Arts

Visions Unlimited—South Area Mengal

Health Clinic
* Volunteers of Americe—Sacramento and
Central Valley
« W.EAVE
Wellspring Women's Center
Women Obraining Respect Trust and Honor
Women's Civie Improvement Club of

Sacramento

* YWCA of Sacramento

Sanx Benitro

* Chamberlain's Children Center
Community Pantry of San Benito County

* Cuddly Critters

* Jovenes de Antane Del Condado de

San Benito

* San Benito Fealth Foundation

San Bernarpino
ASA |.|‘.|.inn|j_; Center
\!.\1!‘.('\"11! [".'."l"l[l'
Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders
\ssociation
\I'nlull'-.il ]{L"":nli":]'[.l,!] Il"[l!l'
Calitornia Garden Clubs
 Christian Counseling Service
(‘i\'.l‘ \‘.IL'\\' .[.[l'.l!”'ll'”[ (.l'“;l'l
= Fair Housing Council of San Bernardino
Cotnry

Inland Area Narve American Association

Latle Creck Community Center

* Lytle Creek Senior Citizens Association

* Morongo Basin Adult Health Services
= More mgo Basin Mental Health Services
\\‘l\l'i;‘l‘:l‘“
P.H.LL.O.S Adolescent
Rolling Sturt
San Bemardino Child Advocacy Program
+ San Bernardino Nauonal Forest Association

* San Gorgonio Volunteer Association
Superior Image Economic Development
Corporation
United Cancer Research Society

Vigor International Group Homes

Sax Deico
AIDS Walk San Dicgo

. .\Iilil‘[ of San [)u_'j_:-s
» Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders
Association

Angel Society of Fallbrook
Aridiey Hispanic Women's Progrum

+ Assistance |,t".|gu|_' ut. Escondido \'.1”{:\

L .\I Your ||1HII1 Services
Barrio Logan College Instinute
Bayview Community Development
Corporiation
+ Big Brothers and Sisters of San Diego County
Big Sister Lengue |{('--'uil'|-.._\
¥ |"l'|:; Sister |.\';1_;;|:l'
Borrego Springs Children's Center
* Borrego Springs Youth Center

Bowvs and Girls Club of Fallbrook
Boys and Girls Club of Naronal Ciny

California Black Health Network

ImprovWorks—The San Francisco Center for .’u:{u‘o-; sisation, San Francisco County—a NIAC menm-

ber since 1997, Improvworks uses improv theatre technigues to teach self-confidence and creativity in
the community through workshaps .mJ;'.’r',f!',rmm.!.'('i_ Pictured above, Flash Family,” San Francisco's

lau.:;m r.'m‘h':'n_;: ~por;frnh'fm.\ theatre h‘on};’*.'.

= California Southern Small Business

Devels pment L‘urlml'.lliun
Casa Familiar
Center for Social Services

Centro Cultural de la Raza

Che Cafe Collective

Children's Education with Care

Clairemont Friendship Center
Classies for Kids
College Area Economic Development

Corporation

Community Care for Adules

Community Connection Resource Center

Corrective Belavior Institute

Crisis House
Deaf Community Services of San Diego
Down'’s Syndrome Association of San Dicgo

» Elderl I\'i]‘ of San I}.N'_:_:n

* Environmental Health Coalition
Escondido Community Child Development
Center
Escondido Education Compacr
* l':.\i_‘unt"dn I |i:«tu|‘i;".l] .“;m‘it't‘\'
* Fallbrook Child Development Center
’ |".I|"vl'nuk Plavers
Gerson Institute
Group Conscience
Farey E.and Rachael M. Moeller Foundation
. ||:|m|' Start

International Mutual Assistince Association
of Sun Dicgo

[\\' actton l"nnl.ul;l(in!l
* Ken Jewish Center
+ Kids on the Block of San Diego
* Lakeside Historical Hm'in'l_\

* Mecting Place

o enotes NIAC member for five or niore years
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* Mid City Christian Services 3
Motor Transport Museum
* Mountain Empire Historical Society
* National Network of Grant Makers
New Haven Youth and Family Services
NL‘\\'}“ it .\l('\d .“'n"mn] i"-il!lhi.ﬂitlli
Normul Heights Community Development
North County Interfarth Council .
Ocean Beach Community Development
R'nr]ml.ti:.nu
Operation Understanding of San Diego
= Pacific Intercultural Exchange
N
3
5
i
B
i faod service
1o homeless and ;'w:_‘;—h'm: m.':"r;g::fr,_\'('.f
s, while also providing hot meals 3
» homeless of San Francisco. Pictured ]

vo students serve up a gourmet meal

at the group’s graduation dinner.

meer for f1

NIAC

V¢ BF Wore years

)'.1[11T|'|<||' I"AH'Hi]_\ {_.l’l”'.“l']i:]‘_( S(‘l \'i{-"

Point Loma Arts Academy

Progressive Social Service Systems Technology

San Diego BayKeeper

San Diego Brain Injury Foundation

San Diego Catholic Worker

San Diego Children's Choir

San Diego Christian Servicemen's Center

San Diego Friends of Parks and Recreation
I':"l“l!ii'ﬁ“"

San Diego Future Leaders

San Diego Mens Chorus

San Diego Second Chanee Program

San I)ic_u,u Women's Chorus

San Diego Youth Symphony

San Dieguito Performing Arts

.";.”! [’.1"\5“.1] Ii.ir[lL‘tiL']ni \‘llhl:l[’.‘l" .\‘;“l\l.'.l“[.:lul

Sanctuary—Domestic Violence Resources

Schizophrenics in Transition

Southern Regional Resource Cenrer

Southwest Wetlands III!\'Ti’:L'n\l' Associarion

Sunrise Youth Care Center

Support Center/Executive Service Corps of
San Dicgo

Teatro Mascara Magica

Vereran's Memorial Center

\-i\'lll.nl] \IL' rans nr' H,I:I l.hu-_;n

Vista Foundation
Voices for Children and Friends of Voices for

Children

Walden Environment
Wellness Community of San Diego
William 1. Lynch Foundation for Children

Youth for I}!ra.'_‘\:('\\

San Francisco
A.B.ADLA. Capocira San Francisco
Academy of Friends
Aim High for High School

Alamo Square Neighborhood Association

+ American Society on Aging
Architectural Foundation of San Francisco
Arriba Juntos
Asian Pacific American (‘HHHHIiHi'{_\' Fund
* Audrey L. Smith Developmental Center

Bay Area Carcer Women Association
* Bay Area Classic Learning
Bay Area Physicians for Human Rights

Bav Area -|‘iu'.m't‘51m1'1~

|§,1_\'\':|r\\ Opera House

Bernal Heights Community Foundation

Berter Health Foundation

Black Coalition on AIDS

.

Booker T. Washington Community Services
Center

Breast Cancer Action

Bridge to Asia 15 windation
CHALK
Caduceus Outreach Services

California Center for Land Rt\'_\{ ijll_;;

.

Calitornia Court Appointed Special Advocates

Association

Calitornin Environmental Trust

California Northern Coastal Area of

\]l'l’!“ i];.\'\ .\rmn_\nmln
California Signrise
Calitornia Summer Music
Center tor Environmental Health

Centro Lating Cuzeatlan

.

Centro Latino de San Francisco

Chemical Awareness and Treatment Service
Children's Psychological Trauma Center
Chinese for Affirmative Action

College Bound Foundation

Committee for Ciudad de los Ninos de
Salamanca

Committee 1o Restore the Opera House

Committee to Save St. Brigad's Church

Community Des
Community Housing Partnership
Continuum HIV Day Services
Coungil on Spiritual Practices
Dolores Streer Community Services
ETVC-Educational TV Channel
I“.l!_}il‘\\'lli!l{ (.‘I'I.I](Ifl‘!l“\ Center
Emanuel Achievement Program
Episcopal Community Services of

Sun Francisco
Family Link
1“.|.:||ill\' Service Agency of San Francisco
Farallon Documentary Films
Farallones Marine Sancruary Association
Fellowship Academy and Preschool
F'“‘].l!‘."!“ .\”ll." il'.‘l! {..‘t'“lll'i] ()TIS.”\ I"]-.IHI'.]"\'U
Filipino Task Force on AIDS
Florence Crittenton Services
Food I{II”'I]L'T"
Footloose Dance (.1\III]!‘U1_\' and Venue 9
Fort Mason Community Garden
Friends of Ethnie Arts
Iriends of Scrap

Gustinell's Tender Loving Care
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Gateway High School

Gay Asian Pacific Alliance Community HIV
Pru_it‘\:l

George Coates Performance Works

Global Exchange

Golden Gate Men's Chorus

Greater Bay Area Family Resource Nerwork

Greenlining Instinute

Haighr Ashbury Food Program

Hands on San Francisco

Harrison's Out of School Program

Harvey Milk Institute

Health Access Foundation

Health Initiatives for Youth

Homecare Companions

Homeless Prenatal Program

Housing Development and Neighborhood
Preservation

Housing Services Affiliate of the Bernal
| ll‘i;]\l\

I Have A Dream Foundation—Qakland

ImprovWorks—The San Francisco Center for
Improvisation

Institute for Market Transformation

Instituto Pro Musica de California

International Gay and Lesbian Human Righes
Commission

International AIDS f‘_im'il.'l_\'-l"ﬁ.\

International Development Exchange

_|l|-ath ¢ Marters Institute

Keary Streer Workshop
Kid's Turn

La Casa de s Madres
Larkin Street Services

Latino Issues Forum

.

.

Lavender Youth Recreation and Information
Center

Lesbian Gay Chorus of San Francisco

Lifeline Mission of San Francisco

Men Overcoming Violence

Mac's Home for Boys and Muc's Transitional
Housing

Meals on Wheels of San Francisco

Mexican Cultural Center

Mexican Museum

Mid-Weeklies

Mission Childeare Consortium

Mission Culrural Center for Latino Arts

Muscum of the City of San Francisco

Names Project Foundation

Natonal Catholic AIDS Network

Network on Women in Prison

Nocleve Documentaries

Northern California Supplier Development
Council

OMI Neighbors in Action

Ouakland Youth Services

Orchidmania

Partners in School Innovation

Patient Assistance Foundation

Peaceful Streers

Pesncide Action Network North America
Rl'_‘_’.llﬂll.ll Center

Phillippines Children L'il;lltl)' Fund
Planning Association for the Richmond
Portola Family Connection Center
Precita Eves Mural Arts Center

Presidio World College

Private Industry Council of San Francisco

Pre :_i(‘_d Re spect

Public Glass
Redefining Progress
Refugee Transitions

Reng

Success

sance Parents of

Richmond District Neigh-
borhood Center

Saint Vincent de Paul
Sociery of Sun Francisco

San Francisco Adule Day Health Network

San Francisco Arts Education Project

San Francisco Bay Arca Broadeast Skills Bank

San Francisco BayKeeper

San Francisco Boys and Girls Club

San Francisco Camerawork

San Francisco Center for the Book

San Franciseo Child Abuse Council

San Francisco Children's Art Center

San Francisco Chinese Parents School
Committee

San Francisco Clothing Bank

San Francisco Education Fund

San Francisco Educational Services

San Francisco Family Foundation

San Francisco Free Clinie

San Franciseo Friends of the Urban Forest
San |"r.|lh"|.~u'n I Ii\Tl'rik‘-lll Slh'il‘l}'

San Francisco League of Urban Gardeners

San Francisco Ministry to Nursing
Homes

San |"r:!1u'in£'u Network of Mental Health
Chents

San Francisco Pertorming Arts Library and
Museum

San Francisco Psychotherapy Research Group

San Francisco Regionul Cancer Foundation

Peninsula Commnity Foundation, San
Mates Connty—a NIAC member since 1990,
The Foundation matehes ;’l'{»‘f‘!’l' wha have
resources to contribute with charitable organi-
zations, Pictured above, a "Lege Car” at the
Sfinish line of the Sand Hill Challenge, an

annual Foundation fundraiser.

» San Francisco S.AFLE.

San Franciseo Special Events Committee

San Francisco Study Center

San Francisco Traditional Jazz Foundation

San Francisco Urban Service Project

Save the Redwoods League

Schools Mentoring and Resource Team

Shakespeare San Francisco

Smuin Ballers

Sojourner Truth Foster Family Service Agency
Square and Cirele Club of San Francisco

STOP AIDS Project

Starr King Park

Support Center tor Nonprofit Management
Susie Tompkins Buell Foundation
Sustainable Conservation

The Marsh

Tenderloin ALDS Resource Center

= denotes NIAC member for five or more years

Photo /{\' Terry Lorant
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Urasenke Foundation of California Western Roundup/Living Sober of Economic Vitality Corporation of American Society for Microbiology
y . - . rancisc 50 3 i S 5 ‘ R w 3 a
Vanguard Foundation San Francisco an Luis Obispo « California Council for the Social Studies
e : Western States Seismic Policy Council Family Cire Network 5 :
+ Victorian Alliance - § . - = Carey School
' ! - : « Wiley W. Manuel Law Foundation Family Life Counseling Service . 3 38
* Volunteer Center of San Francisco b el R ' SRR SR IEENISE Concentric Nedia
y . = William G. Irwin Charity Foundation Food Bank Coalition of San Luis Obispo oL :
+ Volunteers in Parole : et o) : 't = kil MRS » Daly City Emergency Food Pantry
; : iy o Women's Educational Media County / o
\\.{g;lcr Saciery of Northern Calitornia el e I Jari : o Bork ; \ C Death with l}:gnm'
> = . ' sla. s . T * lFoundanon for the Pertormmg Arts Center C 2
2 . n's ative tor Selt L F b o z
* We Care Bay Area Women's lsstive toe SelfEanplayment T M 4 s Dreamkeeper—Parmers in Education
4 =4y . T Foundation for Community Desien . >
| , Y . ! * World Centre—San Francisco v L Learning Program
| « Wesr Bav Local Dev L'!t\}lmx'.'][ C orporation Fiends Curiidein s Luis Ob; C - -
: . g ‘ S » Friends Outside in San Luis Obispo County a1t . Tho [ . -
. a0 =t ! B x Socie San Francisc ) 21 Centro de Libertad—The Freedom Center
I = Western Addition Senior Citizens Service Yoga Society of San Francisco Pl Tt ok y : o o El Centro de Libertac SRt ‘
& Center * Young Audiences of the Bay Arca * Friends of San Luis Obispo Botanical Gurden Fair Ouks Beautification Association
Youth Industry Hesed Christian Ministries Foundation for a College Education
S e + LifeSpan Services Network Foundation for Autistic Childhood Educatior
7 .\}‘.u'\‘ Studio oundation for Autstd nldhood Education
« NCI Affiliates and Support
| ; l o Natural History Association of Giorilla Foundation
SAN JoaQuin s J : i y
| ¢ - 2 | San Luis Obispo Coast « Hillshorough Schools Foundation
o Asii Yeific Self-Development ; = | . 5
Asian Paci I_‘ X _L“I]”i et ANt Pacific Coast Christian School Holocaust Oyl I{ tory }I Mect
Residential Association i) e e Hocal. Tl Fastory Frajtd
) = Paso Robles Foundation for Culture and 1 T P e
Beacon Lighthouse i A * Human Investment Project
ne ]
iill-\.\ |“ll! (;I:]x L.]lli\ lllI :"[H‘L'kli Ml - !I(-lj \ll‘ I li-] )i”-] i)‘-‘\ 'll" i Ili‘\'![l"‘: -It'l. MG Il\il\ cteen 'I’ I{l""‘”‘
] } ] i (=] l lil'l‘;l\'lllr
Circle C Ranch ¥ rnie Pl 2 S, !
l * Pioncer Players International Institute for Ecological
Cottage Oaks Medieal Outreach Robert 1. Janssen Foundation Agriculture
+ Family Resource Network « San Luis Obispo Children's + Jean Weingarten Oral School for the Deaf’
K and M New Life Home Museum Joy Adolescent Treatment Center
Karalysis Partnership = San Luis Obispo County AIDS Support » Kainos Home and Traning Center
oy ] ] (T .\'anl:'LL
« Lilliput Children's Services » La Casa de San Mateo
; - ik i = San Luis Obispo Literacy Council . ;
Service First of Northern California ] || 7 e Bl Latino Commission on Alcohol and Drug
» South County Performing Arts Building . .
» Share Homes I " & .‘ . ! e Abuse Service San Mateo
Foundation y
A Society of St. Vincent De Paul of Stockton o Marin Association for Retarded Citizens
o, Santa
vl N Marte Foundation
we 1990, New S VL (4 A
. ; San Mareo
for dis- y . Neurral Zone
. g 1 3 » o1 L . . b 4 ’
Lar Sax Luis Ogisro Achieve and Penninsula Children's Center
vy T — - ) . VT ¥ Q4 .
ARl Kote A ecpptartyn ChunetAniilac Noreal Golden Rerriever Rescue
Atascadero Recreation Center Committee » Al-Anon Family Groups + Peninsula Conumunity Foundation
. 5 . - 3. : .,
Central Coast Aquarium Society All Stars Helping Kids + Peninsula Humane
. « . 5 - T et AL
+ Clark Ovitt Foundation + Alliance tor the Mentally HI of San Mateo + Peninsula League

Peninsula Network of Mental Flealth Clients
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Peninsula Outreach Programs

Performing Arts For Youth Sociery

Rupe Trauma Services

Redwood City Elementary Schools Cinzens'
United Eftort

Redwood City Friends of Literacy

San Mateo Coast Natural History Association

Sequoia High School Alumni Association

Hniia].trit_\' I"l.‘”l\\‘l'ﬁhll]‘

Sor Juana Ines Services for Abused Women

South Coast Childrens' Services

Tax-Aid

Thear Intemational

This Side of the Hill Players

Tri-City Concert Association

SANTA BARBARA

\I((,‘ lll- 5.”][.1 \].i[l.l \..l"L'.\'
American Philanthropy Association
Anger Management and Counscling Services

Animal Shelter Assistance Program of
Santa Barbara

CASA of Santa Barbara

Central Coast | |L‘.n{\\".l_\

Community Environmental Council
Community Partners in Caring
Contemporary Music Theatre
Comerstone House of Santa Barbara
Endowment for Youth

Foundation tor Horses and Other Animals
Girls Inc. of Carpinteria

Girls Inc. of Greater Santa Barbara

Good Samaritan Shelter

_lluli House

Lompoc Housing Assistance Corporation

Los Padres Interprerive Association
= Meals on Wheels of Lompoc

Music and Arts Conservatory of
Santa Barbara

= New Directions for People with Disabilities
Non Profits Support Center

* SMILE

SMOOTTH

.

Santa Barbara Electric Transportation

Institute

Santa Barbara Family Care Center

5'.I|I'|.| BL!‘[\H['.I ,\I.!1j[]l' xl.ll’]\]n.{f (.l"ll'[l‘]'

.

Santa Barbara Rape Crisis Center

Santa Barbara Rescue Mission

Santa Maria Arts Council
Santa Maria Civic Theatre

Santa Maria Valley Youth and Family Center

Senior Programs of Santa Barbara

.

South Coast Business Network

Speaking of Stones

Volunteers for |1|h'|'-\':|]'||.'_\ Animals

Valley of Flowers Half Century Club

Santa Crara

A Plage for Teens

Ablinaya Dance Company of San Jose
Active Learning in the Arts

Al Amigos Alano Club of San Jose
Ananda Marga of Los Alros Tills

.

* Arts Council Sihicon \':L”t'_\

Beginning Steps o Independence

Bill Wilson Center

California Council for the Promotion of
History

Campfire Boys and Girls

Center for Excellence in :\.(Illi\l'tllif‘\

Child Quest International

Christian Environmental Association

Christian Family Foundation

Christmas Dinner Fund

Combined Addicts and Protessionals Services

Community Association for Rehabilitation

Community Family Services

Community Health Awareness Coungeil

Community Technology Alliance

Convalescent Hospital Ministry of Santa
Clara Valley

Court Designated Child Advocates of
Santa Clara

(‘ll]'L'l'!i”ll Hl'lllil'r I).l}' SL'T\'II\\F?\

Diabetes f‘im'iﬂ_\ of Santa Clara \".Iﬂt'_\'

EE's Residential Group Homes

Ethiopian Community Services

Familv Giving Tree

Filipino American Senior Opportunities
Development Couneil

Four Springs Seminars

GRASP Foundation

( ll(]\ \il\!l.“l. -\;L'!ll]fil

Gravstone Home and School Club

Gireen Pastures

Healing Woman Foundation

Heart of the Valley Services for Seniors

,I

Higher Education Policy Institute

Community Asiaciation for Rebabilitation, Sunta

Clara € 1998, The
Creative Recreation Program, one of many pro-
trams offered by CAR. for disabled individuals off
all ages, offers gf,f.n:l'-n:r.'rr;fz.-' and summer vecreation i
a structured, supervised setting.

ounty—a NIAG member sinee

« Homeless Care Foree

Intormation and Referral Services
JEMW.L, Corporation

Jumpstart Your Life

KARA

Kaisiahan of San Jose Dance Company

.

Kids in Common

I{l’l]\'lll'li \1 y ;Jkl{n

Korean American Community Services

LOOP Center

Live Ouk Adult Day Services

Los Altos Mountain View Children's Corner

L.os Gatos Athletic Association

Los Gatos Community Foundation

denetes NLAC H.'rH.r.r".’x'I'l,h:_’d'I,f].'i e Or IHOre e 29
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Love of Santa Clara Cx METILY
Malonev-Wil
and Te

Mental Research Instanute
Mor
Mo
Next Door—Saol

ran Center

i Hill Historieal Society

ns 1o Domestic Viole

Nonprofit Dey
Northside

opment Center

I'heatre Council of "“:-'-_i-"';
Pacific Autism Cepter for Education
Parernits Fli i|-'|.;-_ Parents

Parkinson's Institute

Peninsula Parents

Gritys

Project March

Project Sentine! Fair Housing

San Jose Unified Educational Foundation

San Juan Buutista Child Care Center

a Clara County Bar Association Law

oLl |!.|[.'-"!
Santa Clara County Committee fin

| [I-i"EII\!I'\‘. t of the Disabled

Saratog Area

v MIAC member for five or more years

n tor Children

.I'.I-i l'!IL'.’!\E\ of I_{"i"..!['l\ an

Senior Coordinating Council

.

Saratoga Historical Foundation

Schola Cantorum

Sensory Aceess Foundarion

Shaot for the Stars

Silicon Valley Pollurion Prevention Center

Silicon Valley Toxics Coalition

Somoan Civie Ass

ation of San Jose

South Vallev Civie Theatre

South ‘t.",lilll'l\ Svimphony

Stanford H.e_\ Arca Charities

Sumnut | Cigue

Theater Angels' Art League

Vietnamese American Cultural and Social
Council

Vision Morgan Hill Foundution

West Buy Opera \ssociation

Women and their Children's Houstng

Youth Focu

Saxta Cruz

\bove The Ling
Advaita Society
\,-rl. wlnaral l |'.--.’u:". Praject

Alzheimer's Association of Santa Cruz

Buws and Girls Club of Santa Cruz

o Guild of Musi

L

Calitornia Girev Bears
Center tor the Future of Teaching und

I Carming

Cluldrer

Cindy's Celebrations

« Community Action Board of Santa Cruz

Lounry

.

Commumty Options

Contlict Resolution Center
Corralitos Padres

Court Appointed Special Advocates of

Sant Cruz County
etensa de Mujeres
Dientes, the Community Dental Clinic
Doran Resource Cenrer for the Blind

Downrown Management Corporation of
Santa Cruz

Farth Links

Educaton Programs Associanes

Education, Training und Research Associates

Emeline Child Care Center
Eschaton Foundation

Familia Center

Family Service Association of the Pajaro Valley

Five Branches Institute

Friends of the Santn Cruz ublic Libraries

Y member since 1997, T
far local senior

Lof seteral clises .’.J,'rI:_'."'r’

* Future Families

» Group Home Sociery

o Homeless Community Resource Center
Homeless Garden Project

= La Que Sabe Art Foundation

= Lite Lab Science Program
Live Ouk Multpurpose Senior Center
Loch Lomond Celtic Society
Mental Health Allance of Santa Cruz

Monrerey Bay Salmon and Trour Projed

Mountain Parks Foundation

Narive Animial Reseue

New Families

New Horzons School

New Music Works

* Organic Farming Research Foundation
Ourdoor Science Exploration

Pacitic Cousst Yourh Home
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Pajaro Valley Historical Association
Pajaro Valley Housing Corporation
Pajaro Valley Shelter Services
Parents Center

Project Scout

San Lorenzo Valley Mountain Community
Theater

Santa Cruz AIDS Project
Santa Cruz Bluegrass Society
Santa Cruz Campus Bike Center

Santa Cruz Citizen's Committec for the
Homeless

Santa Cruz Clean and Sober Homes

Santa Cruz Community Counseling Center

Santa Cruz County Junior Golf Association

Santa Cruz County Symphony Association

Santa Cruz County Veterans Memorial
Building ’

Santa Cruz Lesbian, Gay Community Center

Santa Cruz SPCA

Senior Network Services

Seniors Council of Santa Cruz and San Benito
Countics

Skills Center

Society for Advancement of Chicanos and
Native Americans

Traveling School

Triad Community Services
Trichotillomania Learning Center
United Services Agency

United Way of Santa Cruz County
Valley Churches United

Valley Resource Center

Walnut Avenue Women's Center

Watsonville YWCA Child Care Center and
Watsonville YWCA

+ Welfare and Low-Income Support Network
» William James Association

Women's Cancer Advocacy Resources and
Education

» Women's Crisis Support and Shelter Services
Young at Heart Project

Youth Opportunities-Santa Cruz

SHASTA

Alternatives to Violence

Cottonwood Community Park

Empire Recovery Center

Northern California Center for Family
Awareness

PlusONE Mentors

Riverfront Playhouse

Senior Legal Center of Northern California
Shasta Sierra Work Furlough

and America

United Way of Northern California

Youth Enrichment Services

Siskiyou
FieldGuides
+ Great Northern Corporation
+ Josephine Taylor Foundation
» Siskiyou Child Care Council
+ Siskiyou Domestic Violence Program
+ Siskivou Performing Arts Center

TeenEdge

Unitted Lumbee Nation of Northern California

SoLANO

A K. Bean Foundation
ARC—Solano
Advocates for the Arts
Animal Place

Arts Benicia

Benicia Community Arts

Coalition Against Homelessness in Solano
County

M-2/Match Two
Solano Family and Children’s Services

Solano Women's Crisis Center

SoNnoMa

Actors' Theatre of Sonoma County

Alternative Family Services

Ananda Institute

Association of Behavior Consultants

Becoming Independent

Bird Rescue Center

Boys and Girls Club of Cloverdale

Boys and Girls Club of Santa Rosa

Burbank Activity Center

Camp Lavender Hill

Care Children's Counseling Center

Circuit Rider Productions

Coastwalk California

Community Childcare Council of Sonoma
County

Community Projects

Diabetes Society of Sonoma County

Extended Child Care Coalition of Sonoma
County

+ Family Service Agency and Community
Counseling Services

Food For Thought

Friends of the Animals in the Redwood
Empire

Gray Foundation

* Greenacre Homes
Healdsburg Boys and Girls Club
Henry House

+, Homeless Prevention Group of Rohnert Park,
Cotati and Pennbrook

+ Hope Counseling Services
» Hospital Chaplaincy Services
Individuals Now
Institute for the Musical Arts
» Inter-Faith Shelter Network

Jewish Community Agency of Sonoma
County
Latino Commission on Alecohol and Drug
Abuse Services of Sonoma
» Lite Management Institute

Local Earth Action Forum—Sonoma Ecology
Center

My Body is Healthy
Napa Valley Opera House
+ New Directions Adolescent Services
» Northwestern Pacific Railroad Historical
Society
« On Our Own
Pet's Lifeline
» Plumfield
Redwood Arts Council
Redwood Lions Memorial Foundation

» Russian River Jazz Festival

s denotes NIAC member for five or more years
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Schools Plus
Sebastopol Center for the Arts

Service Outreach Motivation Empowerment

Sonoma City Opera

Sonoma Community Center
Sonoma County A.LD.E.
Sonoma County AIDS Network

Sonoma County Academic Foundation for
Excellence in Medicine

Sonoma County Alzheimer’s Task Force

Sonoma County Community Foundation

Sonoma County Indian Health Project

Sonoma County Men's Support Center

Sonoma County People for Economic
Opportunity

Sonoma County Rental Information and
Mediation '

Sonoma State Historic Park Association

Sonoma Valley Chorale

Technical Assistance and Support Services
The Joy Riders Foundation

True to Life Children's Services

Vietnam Veterans of California

Vintage House—The Jerry Casson
Multipurpose Senior Center

Volunteer Center of Sonoma County

* West Santa Rosa Local Action Council

StaNISLAUS
Center for Senior Employment
* Community Housing and Shelter Services
+ Community Transitional Resources
* Disability Resources Agency for Independent
Living

* denotes NIAC member for five or more years

Doctors Medical Center Foundation

Friends Outside of Modesto Stanislaus
Modesto Peace Life Center

Na Ohana O Ke Awawa

Parent Resource Center

SLD Foundation

Society for Handicapped Children and Adults
Stanislaus County Child and Infant Care

Assaciation

SUTTER

California Age Research Institute
Family Life Foundation
Yuba Sutter Alljance for the Mentally 111

Yuba-Sutter Economic Development
Corporation

* Yuba-Sutter Gleaners Food Bank

TeHama
Deer Creek Watershed Conservancy

Tehama Recovery Center

TuLARrE
Community Services and Employment
Training
Court Appointed Special Advocates of
Tulare County
Lindsay-Strathmore Coordinating Council
* Love, Inc. of Tulare County
» Pioncer Home Outreach
* Porterville Gleaning Seniors
Pro-Youth Visalia

Teviston Betterment Association

Tulare County Alcoholism Council

Tulare County Hispanic Commission on
Alcoholism

+ Tulare County League of Mexican-American
Women

Tulare Emergency and Aid Council
* Turning Point of Central California

* Visalia Rescue Mission

TUuoLUMNE

Comprehensive Continuum of Service

VENTURA

Alliance for Family Solutions

Alzheimers Disease/Related Disorders
Association

Arts Council of the Conejo Valley

Center for Studies of the Future

Coalition to End Domestic and Sexual
Violence

Corriganville Preservation Committee

Easter Seals Tri-Counties California
Friends of the Thousand Oaks Library

Greater Coalinga Area Family Crisis Support
Network

Long Term Care Services of Ventura County

Meadowlark Service League

Oakbrook Park Chumash Indian Corporation

Project Understanding
Redwood Recovery Corporation

Santa Paula Community Fund

Santa Paula Theater Center
Ventura Academy

* Youth Conncction of Ventura County

YoLo

Yusa

Cache Creek Lodge

Citizens Who Care

Community Care Car

Davis Community Meals

Davis Mutual Housing Association
FamiliesFirst

Friends of the Allied Non-Profits
Knights Landing Community Center

Mental Health Association of Yolo County
Morning Star Summer Enrichment Program
People Resources

Re-Runs

Sexual Assault and Domestic Violence Center

Short Term Emergency Aid Committee of
Davis

Solar Community Housing Association
Summer House and Davis Summer House
Woodland Memorial Health Foundation
Woodland Youth Services

Yolo Community Care Continuum

Yolo Connections

Yolo County Coalition Against Hunger

Yolo County Court Appointed Special
Advocates

Yolo Wayfarer Center

Tri-County Respite Care



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

Repr

ORT

WL‘ have audited the accompany-
ing consolidated balance sheets
of Nonprofits” Insurance Alliance of
California (the Company) as of
December 31, 1998 and 1997 and the
related consolidated statements of
income, members’ equity and cash flows
for the years then ended. These finan-
cial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on

our audits.

Wc conducted our audits in accor-
dance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated finan-
cial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting prin-
ciples used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evalu-
ating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

Iﬂ our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company
as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 and
the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in con-
formity with generally accepted

accounting principles.

?ﬁﬁeﬁ'ﬂ& 9= Tomele. LLF

Deloitte & Touche, LLP
San Jose, California

March 5, 1999

Deloitte &
Touche LLp

A

el

el



CoNsOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 1998 and 1997

ASSETS

Investments:
Restricted investments at market
Investments at market

Toral Investments

Cash

Premiums receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of §9,980
in 1998 and $5,859 in 1997

Interest receivable

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Reinsurance recoverable

Prepaid reinsurance premium

Deferred acquisition costs

Income tax receivable

Deferred rax asset

Property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation of §261,292 in 1998 and
$203,054 i 1997

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND NEMBERS EQUITY

Ourstanding checks

Laoss and loss adjustment expense reserves
Unearned premiums

Reinsurance payable

Accounts payable and other acerued liabilities

Subordinared debt
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Members” equity:
Members' contributions
Retained carnings
Aceumulated other comprehensive income

Total members” equity

TOTAL

See notes to consolidated financial statements,

1998

§ 2,142,281
21,438,846

23,581,127
205,423

1,751,746
354,793
97,750
8,158,391
1,253,449
1,069,617
865,917

— 145,359

$ 37,483,572

s —_—
5,642,460
1,714,177

1,432,681

31,018,548
1,300,000

1997

§ 2,057,077
17,050,365

19,107,442

1,952,858
272,051
33,220
7.584.120
1,177,502
994,850
15,497
374,918

19,481

S 102,192
18,238,613
3,368,694
1,814,884
1,097,650
26,622,033

1,300,000

784,917
2,613,320
311,669
[} (9

3,709,906

$ 31,631,939

Years Ended December 31, 1998 and 1997

REVENUES
Gross written premium
Ceded premium
Net written premium
Increase in uncarned premium
Net earned premium
Net restricted investment income
Ner investment income
Net realized gain on sales of investments
Other income
Total revenues
EXPENSES
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred
Salaries and employee benefits
Commission expense
Other expense
Toral expenses
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

1998

$ 12,433,347
(2,860,574)

9,572,773
(196,519)
9,376,254
104,583
1,190,670
61,082
11,098,212
6,371,346
1,494,214
1,446,702
347,036
9,659,298
1,438,914
38,836

s 1,400,078

1997

§ 11,598,848
(2,631,928)

8,966,920
(Zl(! 1 .];—l
8,217,775
93,185
972,124

36,787
266,984

9,586,855
5,502,796
1,426,558
1,216,486
276,245
8,422,085
1,164,770
398,099
66,671



See notes to consolidated financial statements,

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

|
CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS EquiTy CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows
Years Ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 Years FEnded December 31, 1998 and 1997
1998 1997
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Accumulated
Other Total Ner income S 1,400,078 S 766,671
Members' Retained  Comprehensive Comprehensive  Members' Adjustments to reconcile net income
Contributions  Earnings Income Income Equity to net cash provided by operating activities:
Ner realized (gains) losses
BALANCES, on sales of investments (61,082) (36,787)
January 1, 1997 § 705,359 $1,846.649 § 83,772 § 2,635,780 Depreciation and amortization 162,906 156,733
Comprehensive income: Deterred income tax benefit 429,305 230,837
Net income 766,671 § 766,671 766,671 (”‘h-‘"ml_"s in s and liabilitics:
Other comprehensive Premiums receivable 201,112 (906,565)
intome; et of tax Interest receivable (82,742) (22,188)
Uirsilised sainsion Prepaid expenses and deposits (64,530) (10,072)
o Q 227.897 227,897 227.897 Reinsurance recoverable (574,271) (271,664)
Other comprehensive SR Prepaid reinsurance premium (75,947) (17,048)
b 237.897 Deferred acquisitions costs (74,767) (246,732)
Comprehensive income S 994,568 Income tax receivable (850,420) 989,739
Membirs' contibitions 79.559 I — 79.558 Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 3,990,617 1,278,278
3 0K Unearned premiums 273,766 766,192
BALANCES L L Reinsurance payable (100,707) 413,183
December 31, 1997 784,917 2,613,320 311,669 3,709,906 Accounts payvable and other acerued liabilities 335,031 (587,901)
Comprehensive income: Outstanding checks (102,192) 102,192
Net income 1,400,078 1,400,078 1,400,078
Other comprehensive Nert cash provided by operating activities 4,806,157 _ 2,604,868
mncome
Unrealized gain on CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
securities 12,255 12,255 12,255 Purchase of investments (28,350,400) (25,437,503)
Other comprehensive Sales and maturities of investments 23,791,243 22,478,954
income 12,255 Purchases of property and equipment (84,362) (11,725)
Comprehensive income $1,412,333
Members' contributions 42,785 _ - 42,785 Net cash used in investing activities (4,643,519) (2,970,274)
BALANCES , i S
December 31, 1998 S 827,702 § 4,013,398 S 323924 $5,165,024 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - i
Proceeds from members’ contributions 42,785 79,558
1998 1997
Disclosure of reclassification NET INCREASE [|)[‘CRI‘:\‘\|‘} IN CASH 205,423 (285,548)
amount, net of tax
Ner unrealized holding CASH, Beginning “f',\'t"-ll' — __ 285848
gains arising during
period $ 73,337 5 264,684 CASH, End of year S 205,423 S —
Less reclassificarion
adjustment for gains SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
mcluded in net income (61,082) (36,787) Cash paid (received) during the vear for:
Federal income taxes S 20,000 S (134,620)
Net unrealized gains in Interest expense 5 26,000 S 26,000
securities S 12255 S 227897
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NoTes To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 1998 and 1997

1. ORGANIZATION

Nonprofits’ Insurance Alliance of California (the Company) was incorporated on September 15,
1988 as a nonassessable nonprofit mutual benefit corporation. In July 1991, the status of the
Company was changed by a vote of the members to a public benefit corporation. The Company
operates in California as a risk pool pursuant to authorization under Section 5005.1 of the
California Corporations Code. The Company is not subject to the rules, regulation and super-
vision of the California Department of Insurance (DOI).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, SCC Reinsurance Limited (SCC Re), which was incorporated in December
1996 (see Note 2). All intercompany balances and transactions have been climinated.

Organizations which meet the following requirements may become members of the
Company: (1) nonprofit organizations which are incorporated in California or qualified to do
business in California; (2) which have received and maintain current and unrevoked determina-
tion of tax exempt status under Section 501(¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code; (3) which are
offered general liability coverages and agree to purchase such coverages; and (4) which pay the
premium for such coverages and the required membership contribution. Because the Company
is nonassessable, the members of the Company, which are both its owners and insureds, are not
liable for the Company’s liabilities should they exceed the Company’s assets.

The Company provides commercial general liability, miscellaneous professional liability, auto-
mobile liability, auto physical damage, and employer’s non-owned and hired automobile liability
coverage to its members. Coverage is provided on an occurrence basis. Typical limits are an
annual aggregate of $1,000,000 and $1,000,000 per occurrence. An annual aggregate of
$3,000,000 is available. A special claims-made coverage with limits available up to a $1,000,000
aggregate including defense and indemnity is available for improper sexual conduct claims.
Directors’ and officers’ liability is available to members on a claims-made basis. The typical
limit of coverage is $1,000,000. The Company also offers umbrella coverage for general liability
policies up to $10 million in excess of $1 million, directors and officers policies up to $5 million
in excess of $1 million, and improper sexual conduct policies up to $1 million in excess of $1
million.

The Company receives one-time contributions from each new member in the form of a non-
refundable membership contribution, which are recorded as an addition to members’ equity.
Effective July 1, 1997, the contribution amount decreased to 5% of the commercial general lia-
bility premium from the prior rate of 10%.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statement Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition - Premiums are recognized as earned on a pro rata basis over the terms of
the policies, usually twelve months. Unearned premiums represent the difference between pre-
miums written and premiums earned.

Deferred Acquisition Costs - Policy acquisition costs incurred are deferred and amortized over
the period of premium recognition. These costs generally include commissions, underwriting,
policy issuance and marketing costs. Amortization of acquisition costs was $2,140,550 for 1998
and $1,713,089 for 1997. Anticipated investment income is not considered in determining if a
premium deficiency exists.

Property and Equipment - Data processing equipment, purchased software and office furniture
and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation, and depreciated over five
years using the straight-line method. Upon retirement or disposition of property and equip-
ment, any gain or loss is included in income.

Investments - The Company has classified all of its investment portfolio as “available-for-sale
securities.” Investments that are classified as “available-for-sale securities” are reported at market
value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as a separate com-
ponent of members’ equity. Net realized investment gains or losses are recognized based upon
the specific identification of investments sold. Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on
those sales were $101,151 and $(40,069), respectively, in 1998 and $51,699 and $(14,912),
respectively, in 1997. The Company has investments in commercial paper. Although such
investments meet the criteria for cash equivalents, the Company has elected to include commer-
cial paper in investments.

Liability for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense (‘LAE”) - The liability for losses and LAE
consists of estimated costs of each unpaid claim reported prior to the close of the accounting
period, as well as those incurred but not yet reported. Management and the Company’s consult-
ing actuary believe that the reserve for losses and LAE at December 31, 1998 is appropriately
established in the aggregate and adequatc to cover the ultimate net cost of reported and unre-
ported claims arising from losses which had occurred by that date. The establishment of appro-
priate reserves is an inherently uncertain process. Such reserves are necessarily based on esti-
mates and the ultimate net cost may vary from such estimates. These estimates are regularly
reviewed and updated using the most current information available. Any resulting adjustments,
which may be material, are reflected in current operations.

Reinsurance - Reinsurance recoverables (including amounts related to claims incurred but not
reported) and prepaid reinsurance premiums are reported as assets. Estimated rcinsurance
recoverables are recognized in a manner consistent with the liabilities relating to the underlying
insured contracts.

Income Taxes - The Company was previously granted tax-exempt status by the state of
California. Effective January 1, 1997, the Company became tax exempt for federal tax purposes
under section 501(¢c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

In anticipation of becoming a tax-exempt entity, the Company incorporated SCC Re in
December 1996. SCC Re is a taxable entity incorporated under the laws of the Island of Nevis,
an independent federation in the West Indies.




The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method of accounting
for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for differences between
financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - As of January 1, 1998, the Company adopted SFAS No.
130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” which requires that an enterprise report, by major
components and as a single total, the change in its net assets during the period from nonowner
sources. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are the only other comprehensive income
component for the Company. For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, comprehensive
income was $1,412,333 and $994,568, respectively.

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the
balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each peri-
od in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is
designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. The
Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 133 for its fiscal year ending December 31, 1999. The
Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, that adoption of SFAS No. 133 will have
on its earnings or statement of financial position.

Reclassifications - Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current
year presentation.

3.RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS

The proceeds from the issuance of subordinated debt (see Note 8) and related earned interest are
held as restricted investments and may not be commingled with any other funds.

Funds in these restricted accounts may be withdrawn only to fund obligations of the Company
to its policyholders and claimants related to all Joss and loss adjustment expenses and to make
payments for principal and/or interest related to the subordinated debt. Funds in the restricted
accounts may not be used for operating expenses of the Company. To date, funds have been
used only for interest payments on the subordinated debt. Such interest expense was $26,000,
both in 1998 and 1997.

Restricted investments, carried in the accompanying balance sheets at estimated market value,
consist of the following as of December 31, 1998 and 1997:

Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
1998: Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate obligations $ 713,954 § 13,285  § — $ 727,239
U.S. government and agency
obligations 339,269 2,673 (185) 341,757
Money market account 1,324 — — 1,324
Mortgage-backed securities 594,040 12,258 — 606,298
Asset-backed securities 294,372 11,998 — 306,370
Other debt securities 159,213 80 — 159,293

2,102,172 $ 40,294 § (185) $ 2,142,281

Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
1997: Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate obligations $ 773498 % 17,042  § — § 790,540
U.S. government and agency

obligations 80,342 608 — 80,950

Money market account 2,549 — — 2,549
Mortgage-backed securities 635,320 7,899 — 643,219
Asset-backed securities 293,394 5,492 — 298,886
Other debt securities 239,956 977 — 240,933

$ 2,025059 $ 32,018 % — $ 2,057,077

The amortized cost and estimated market value of restricted investments at December 31, 1998,
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturi-
ties because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties.
Estimated
Amortized Cost Market Value

Due in 1 year or less $ 269,004 $ 269,944

Due after 1 year through 5 years 785,973 796,954
Due after 5 years 158,783 162,715
Mortgage-backed securities 594,040 606,298
Asset-backed securities 294,372 306,370
Total $2,102,172 $ 2,142,281

In 1998 and 1997, gross realized gains and losses on sales of fixed maturity securities were
$14,058 and $1;068, and $736 and $225, respectively.

4. INVESTMENTS
Unrestricted investments, carried in the accompanying balance sheets at estimated market value,
consist of the following as of December 31, 1998 and 1997:

Cost or Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
1998: Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate obligations $10,504,226 § 182,185 $ —  $10,686,411
U.S. government and agency
obligations 3,576,015 9,414 (19,577) 3,565,852
Money market account 132,293 —_ — 132,293

Mortgage-backed securities 4,084,982 48,727 — 4,133,709
Asset-backed securities 1,099,899 14,164 — 1,114,063
Other debt securities 1,523,221 6,417 (246) 1,529,392
Equity securities 234,395 42,731 — 277,126

$21,155.031 $ 303,638 $§ (19.823) $21,438,846
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Cost or Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

1997: Cost Gains Losses Value

Corporate obligations $ 9,483,308 § 265,599 $ —  $ 9,748,907
U.S. government and agency

obligations 249,860 2,874 — 252,734
Money market account 85,945 — — 85,945
Mortgage-backed securities 4,244 860 41,993 — 4,286,853
Asset-backed securities 419,269 8,801 — 428,070
Other debt securities 2,232,358 15,498 — 2,247,856
$16,715,600 $ 334,765 $ —  $17,050,365

The amortized cost and estimated market value of unrestricted investments at December 31,
1998, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or repayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated

Cost Market

Value
Due in 1 year or less $ 2,806,010 $ 2,817,435
Due after 1 year through 5 years 6,293,593 6,353,791
Due after 5 years 6,636,152 6,742,722
Mortgage-backed securities 4,084,982 4,133,709
Asset-backed securities 1,099,899 _ 1,114,063
Total $20,920.,636 $21,161,720

Pretax gross realized gains (losses) on sales of fixed maturity securities in 1998 and 1997 were

$76,863 and $(7,838) and $50,965 and $(14,689), respectively. Pretax gross realized gains and
(losses) on sales of equity securities in 1998 were $10,230 and $(31,163), respectively. There

were no equity securities in 1997.

5.FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below reflects a summary of fair value disclosures of financial instruments:

1998 1997
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Restricted investments $ 2,142,281 $ 2,142,281 $ 2,057,077 $ 2,057,077
Investments 21,438,846 21,438,846 17,050,365 17,050,365

Estimated market values of debt securities, are based on average bid prices, or for newly issued
securities, the average bid prices of similar issues with the same life and expected yields. Values
of equity securities are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The carrying
amounts of receivables and payables approximate fair value due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the subordinated debt due to the unique
repayment features of this debt.

6.INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

1998 1997
Current 8% (607,471) $ 178,939
Deferred 646,307 219,160
Total $ 38,836 $ 398,099

Total income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal
income tax rate of 35% to income before taxes as follows:

1998 1997
Computed tax expense at federal statutory rate $ 503,620 $ 407,670
Earnings of tax-exempt entity (576,195) (131,376)
State tax settlement, net of federal benefit — 125,665
Valuation Allowance 111,411 —
Other, net — (3,860)

Total $ 38,836 $ 398,099

In 1997, the Company paid $190,401 to settle a state tax dispute related to prior years. Net of
the related federal tax benefit, this resulted in a prior-year charge of $125,665.

The following is a summary of the changes in the deferred tax asset:

Gross Gross Net
Deferred Valuation Deferred Deferred
Tax Asset Allowance Tax Liability Tax Asset
Balances at January 1, 1997 $ 960,733 % — % (354,978) $ 605,755
1997 changes (313,944) — 83,107 (230,837)
Balances at December 31, 1997 646,789 — (271,871) 374,918
1998 changes (535,378) (111,411) 271,871 (374,918)

Balances at December 31,1998 $ 111411 $ (111.411) $ — $ —




The types of temporary differences that primarily comprise the net deferred tax asset at
December 31, 1998 and 1997 include loss and loss adjustment expenses, unrealized gains on
debt securities available for sale, state income taxes and deferred acquisition costs, net operating
loss carryforwards and alternative minimum tax carryforwards.

At December 31, 1998, deferred tax assets have been fully offset with a valuation allowance as
it is more likely than not that the related tax benefit will not be realized by the Company.

7.LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE RESERVES

Activity in the loss and loss adjustment expense reserves is summarized as follows:
1998 1997

Gross loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, January 1 $ 18,238,613 $ 16,960,335

Reinsurance recoverables (7,584,120) _ (7,312,456)
Net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 10,654,493 9,647,879
Incurred related to:

Current year 6,264,379 5,490,964

Prior years 106,967 11,832
Total incurred 6,371,346 5,502,796
Paid related to:

Current year 966,739 1,112,328

Prior years 1,988,261 3,383,854
Total paid 2,955,000 _ 4,496,182
Net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, December 31 14,070,839 10,654,493
Reinsurance recoverables 8,158,391 7,584,120

Gross loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, December 31 $ 22,229,230 $ 18,238,613

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the loss and loss adjustment
expense reserves increased by $106,965 and $11,832 in 1998 and 1997, respectively, due to
recurring and normal adjustments in anticipated losses and loss related expenses.

8. SUBORDINATED DEBT
In 1989, a total of $1,300,000 was provided by foundations in the form of restricted assets (sce
Note 3) in the amounts listed below:

Ford Foundation $ 500,000
Wallace Alexander Gerbode Foundation 250,000
David and Lucile Packard Foundation 250,000
San Francisco Foundation 100,000
Marin Community Foundation 100,000

Wialter S. Johnson Foundation 100,000
Total $ 1,300,000

The Company pays 2% simple interest per year on these funds. Payment of interest is made in
quarterly installments and amounted to $26,000 in 1998 and 1997.

Repayment of the principal was scheduled to begin September 1993; however, several provi-
sions govern the repayment process. Principal amounts are considered to be due and payable
only when an independent actuary certifies that to make such repayment would in no way jeop-
ardize the financial stability of the Company. Interest payments may be postponed at any time
if Company management determines that paying interest would jeopardize the financial stability
of the Company.

In 1998, an independent actuary performed its annual actuarial analysis of the Company’s
ability to repay the principal. The independent actuary concluded that the Company could
repay a portion of the subordinated loans without jeopardizing the ability to meet current liabili-
ties. However, any reduction in earned surplus, defined as the amount by which the Company’s
assets exceeds the sum of all liabilities (excluding principal and interest obligations related to the
subordinated debt), would affect the Company’s ability to continue to grow and write new busi-
ness. Therefore, since the Company is planning to increase its writings, the independent actuary
recommended the principal repayments not be made in 1998. Actuarial analyses will continue
to be performed annually (See note 12).

The Company and the foundation leaders developed a revised repayment schedule in 1995 as
follows:

December 31, 1999 $ 240,000
December 31, 2000 848,000
December 31, 2001 212,000
Total $ 1,300,000

The Company intends to accelerate the proposed schedule if recommended to do so by an inde-
pendent actuary as a result of the annual actuarial analysis.

Recourse on the subordinated debt is generally limited to earned surplus. If any principal
amount of the subordinated debt has been authorized for payment by an independent actuary,
but remains unpaid by the Company, such principal bears interest of 10% per annum. However,
any principal amount not authorized for repayment by a certified actuary, or due according to
the schedule of repayments, continues to bear interest at the rate of 2% per annum.

In case of material misrepresentation or fraud by the Company or its employees, use of the
funds for orher than their stated purpose or to influence political activities, demand may be
made by the foundations for repayment of the subordinated debt out of the assets of the
Company other than earned surplus. If it is determined that the Company is intentionally
charging inadequate premiums to materially adversely affect the Company’s ability to make
timely payments of principal and/or interest, the foundations may request appropriate increases
in premiums. If the Company and the foundations are unable to agree on appropriate future
adjustments to premiums, at their option, the foundations may request repayment of the out-
standing principal balance.
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9. REINSURANCE

In its normal course of business, the Company reinsures with other companies through contrac-
tual agreements. Such agreements serve to limit the Company’s loss on large claims. Risks rein-
sured would become an expense of the Company in the event the reinsurer is unable to or will
not fulfill the obligations assumed under the agreements.

During 1998 and 1997, the Company’s reinsurance was in three layers ag follows:

Layer Contract Company Reinsurance
Year Retention Limits
First Excess 1997-1998 $ 100,000 $ 900,000
First Excess 1996 $ 100,000 $ 150,000
Second Excess 1997-1998 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Second Excess 1996 $ 250,000 $ 750,000
Third Excess 1996 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Umbrella 1996-1998 $ 1,000,000 $ 10,000,000

These limits are on a “per occurrence” basis and “losses” for the purposes of these agreements
include indemnity and allocated loss adjustment expenses.

In addition, beginning in 1992, the Company began offering umbrella coverage for general lia-
bility. These policies are 100% ceded on a treaty basis. The Company received ceding commis-
sion on this business of $236,189 in 1998 and $207,634 in 1997.

The table below reflects the financial statement captions which are stated net of the effects of
reinsurance:

Reinsurance Ceded 1998 1997
Premiums earned $ 2,851,418 $ 2,614,877
Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred 2,101,033 3,025,872

In 1998, the Company paid a fixed reinsurance premium based on gross premium written,
subject to a profit-sharing arrangement which could result in a refund of reinsurance premium as
a result of favorable loss experience. As a result of experience to date, no provision has been
made for potential profit sharing under this agreement. For the second layer, the Company pays
a fixed reinsurance premium based on gross premiums written.

In 1997, for the first layer of reinsurance, the Company paid a preliminary reinsurance premi-
um based on gross premiums written, subject to additional premium in the event of unfavorable
loss experience. Considerable judgment is involved in estimating the ultimate premium to be
paid under this reinsurance agreement. Based on expected loss experience, the Company has
accrued the maximum possible premium. Reinsurance payable at December 31, 1998 and 1997
includes $1,340,966 and $1,323,244, respectively, of additional premiums related to potential
adverse loss experience. In the event of favorable loss experience, this premium would result in
income to the Company. For the second layer, the Company pays a fixed reinsurance premium
based on gross premiums written, subject to a profit-sharing arrangement which could result in a

refund of reinsurance premium as a result of favorable loss experience. As a result of experience
to date, no provision has been made for potential profit sharing under this agreement. For the
third layer, the Company pays a fixed reinsurance premium based on gross premiums written.

During 1993, the Company received a $394,791 refund of reinsurance premiums due to favor-
able loss experience in prior years and has subsequently received an additional refund of $17,722
and $38,123 in 1998 and 1997, respectively, and repaid to the reinsurer $172,785 and $74,324
in 1996 and 1995, respectively, due to subsequent development. As future development of this
loss experience may require additional repayment, the remaining portion of the refund is includ-
ed as a liability in reinsurance payable.

Reinsurance recoverable includes $3,128,528 (40% of total reinsurance recoverable) and
$3,128,528 (40%) at December 31, 1998 and $3,125,948 (41.2% of total reinsurance recover-
able) and $3,081,948 (40.4%) at December 31, 1997, respectively, due from two reinsurance
companies, both of which are rated A or better by A.M. Best.

10. COMMITMENTS

The Company had entered into a noncancelable operating lease for office space through March
1998. The lease has an option to renew for a period of up to five years. The Company has
elected to renew the lease for a period of three years, through March 2001.

Minimum payments due under this commitment (net of sublease rents) are as follows:

Year Ending December 31:

1999 $ 150,710
2000 155,231
2001 33,310

Total minimum lease payments  § 339,251
Total rent expense for 1998 and 1997 was $146,320 and $81,753, respectively.

11. 401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLAN

The Company sponsors an employee 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (the Plan). Employer non-
matching contributions were $1,000 per employee for 1998 and 1997. The employer matching
contributions were limited to $1,000 per employee during 1998 and 1997. The amounts con-
tributed to the Plan were $38,528 and $38,873 in 1998 and 1997, respectively. Employees qual-
ify for the employer portion of the contribution after one year of service with the Company.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 1999, the Company created a subsidiary organization named NIAC Member
Insurance Services. This subsidiary will assume control of several underwriting management ser-
vices cusrently provided by NIAC including underwriting services related to workers’ compensa-
tion, property and student/volunteer accident insurance.

In March 1999, the Company’s independent actuary concluded that the Company could repay a
portion of the subordinated loans without jeopardizing the ability to meet current obligations or
affecting the Company’s ability to continue to grow.
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